2020 HHIERS
INTERIM REPORT

<~ National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited

é‘@’&’ BEIRREX (L FBERAT

rated in the Cayman Islands ued in Bermuda with limited liability)
(%Fﬁsﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁklﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ.@z%ﬁﬁZ\‘T)

Stock code % 17 X 5% : 8228

¢

<
& ¢
V4



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company’) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the
“Company”) announces the unaudited consolidated results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and
the three months ended 30 June 2020, together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2019 as
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follows:

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

AEEUCGERENR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HzEBaE%

Six months ended
30 June
AAZTRLEAMEA

Three months ended
30 June
BZXB=tHL=M@A 8z

2020 2019 2019
—ECEF —T-NE —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TAEL FTHET
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
ik (REER) (REERZ) (REER) (REEZ)
Revenue LN
- Goods and services ~-ERRERS 4 4,573 35,673 14,215 68,881
- Rental -Hg 4 1,066 12,081 2,000 20,426
Total revenue A 5,639 47,754 16,215 89,307
Other income HipA 4 7,238 1,492 9,841 1,957
Staff costs BIMKA 8 (11,204) (14,382) (23,512) (27,865)
Other operating expenses HigBmY (20,429) (29,164) (34,016) (52,998)
Operating (loss)/profit g (ER) /FE (18,756) 5,700 (31,472) 10,401
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1%  BiE Rk G E
equipment 8 (24,867) (28,951) (27,514) (31,818)
Depreciation of right-of-use asses ~ FRELENE 8 (3,439) (3,439) (6,878) 6,878)
Net exchange gain/(losses) B 5/ (B18) 348 1,307 (21,200) (12,752) (1,816)
Share of loss of a joint venture HME—fE A**ﬁ%f&ﬁa (576) 979) (1,229) {1, 285)
Impact on financial restructuring HEBREANTE 7 854,269 - 854,269
Finance costs BE A 6 (41,085) (74,949 (84,609) (1 44,236)
Profit/(loss) before income tax ~ BRFTEHATFE / (F5iE) 8 766,943 (123,818) 689,815 (175,632)
Income tax expenses FrERAX 9 - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the period AEEAE,/ (FR) 766,943 (123,818) 689,815 (175,632)
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REERHERERAMZERER

Three months ended
30 June
BEXA=THL=M@A

2020

b St 33

HK$’000

TR

Notes (Unaudited)
Pirat (RBER)

Other comprehensive income/
(expense)

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange difference on translation

HEt2ERA/ (%)

BRI EETRRER
ZH
BEBIRBHBERRE

of financial statements of foreign EEMERER
operations
Other comprehensive income/  ZAHIREHEM2EEA,/

(expense) for the period,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income/  AHE2ERA/ (BX)
(expense) for the period s

Profit/(loss) for the period SRR,/ (FR)
attributable to:

Owners of the Company N/NIEZEN

Non-controling interests ks

Total comprehensive income/  FE{EAHIBE2EEA,/
(expense) for the period (BX%) &%
attributable to:

Owners of the Company /NI ZEN

Non-controling interests kR

Earnings/(loss) per share BREFN/ (FE)
Basic and diluted EAREHE

(BA%) - {IBRBE

2019

—T-NE

HK$'000
TAL

(Unaudited)
(REER)

Six months ended

30 June
BEAA=tHLERER

2020

—BCEE

HK$’000
THR

(Unaudited)
(RRBER)

2019

—T-NEF

HK$'000
TBT

(Unaudited)
(REERZ)

777 (14,126) (8,736) (1,029

7 (14,126) (8,736) (1,029)
767,720 (137,944) 681,079 (176,661)
767,125 (123.481) 690,202 (175,294)
(182) (337) (47) (338)
766,943 (123,818) 689,815 (175,632)
(767,902) (137,607) 681,556 (176,329)
(182) (337) (477) (338)
767,720 (137,944) 681,079 (176,661)
HK15.36 (HK2.55 HK13.81 (HK3.68
10 cents &1l cents A1) cents &l cents Bl
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REBRZEEMBRR K

At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R-B-EHF RZE—NF
~NB=+H +=-—A=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx T
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
{hr=s (REBER) (feFE%z)
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB NEE 12 1,361,372 1,400,027
Investment in a joint venture BEDLERE 1,620 2,849
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITER 2,186 2,229
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13 353,340 360,218
Long-term receivables and & BB R IE )38 B
investment deposits Be 127,291 129,115
1,845,809 1,894,438
Current assets REEE
Film products and film production BYEMMERER
in progress Em 4,544 4,344
Investment in films/dramas BEERBIERIE
production 325 325
Trade receivables JEWE 578 14 68,630 75,184
Inventories FE 2,470 2,514
Prepayment, deposits and other FERRIE - ZeERk
receivables H A e R IE 92,205 42,265
Amount due from a joint venture FEY A & EFIR 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances Re KRB &R 1,510 3,667
172,098 130,713
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables JEE S FE 15 35,574 36,072
Other payables and accruals H e R R ERTE B 174,495 197,393
Loans from shareholders KEREREE R 16 1,753 589,457
Borrowings BE 139,179 217,145
Bank overdrafts RITEZ - 5,778
Lease liabilities/Finance lease HERRE MEHEE
obligation HE 13,758 13,502
Promissory note G 18 14,100 115,197
Bonds BE% 17 - 769,105
Provision for income tax FTiS R 15 9 2,951 2,951
381,810 1,946,600
Net current liabilities REBEFE (209,712) (1,815,887)
Total assets less current liabilites EEZLEBERRBAE 1,636,097 78,551
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AEERZRAMHMRR R

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Bonds
Promissory notes
Convertible bonds
Finance lease obligation
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company
Non-controlling interests

Total Equity

EREBEE
BE

&%
EHEE
AR EE
B P TH S AR
EEHERE

BEE/(AE)
BEXREE

[N

&

ARAHA NEEER
FEERE R

EREE

At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R-B-EHF RZE—NF
ANA=t1H +=-—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
{hr=s (REBER) (feFE%z)
8,410 9,895
17 - 384,178
32,900 -
19 826,027 -
16,834 16,261
99,500 99,500
983,671 509,834
652,426 (431,283)
710,329 494,817
(56,883) (925,557)
653,446 (430,740)
(1,020) (543)
652,426 (431,283)
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At 1 January 2019 (Audited)

Share issued upon exercise of
share options

Share issued upon completion of
placing new shares

Transactions with owners

Loss for the period

Exchange difference on translation
of financial statement of foreign
Operations

Total comprehensive expense
for the period

At 30 June 2019 (Unaudited)

Asat 1 January 2020 (Audfted)

Lapse of share options

Issue of convertble bonds arising
from the completion of financial
restructuring

Share issued upon completion of
financil restructuring

Transactions with owners

Proft/foss) for the period

Exchange difference on translation
of financial statement of foreign
operafions

Total comprehensive income(expense)

for the period

Ag at 30 Jung 2020 (Unaudited)

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REBREERBRBR

rERERREE

HREARREAET
Hikh

BEEAEOHRS

KR/ (58)

BEENERYBARE
EENMERZE

FEERANA/ (FR)
%

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ADARAAEE

Attributable

Properties Convertible tonon-

Share Share Special ~ Contributed  revaluation ~ Translation ~ Share option  bond equity  Accumulated controlling
capital premium resere surplus reserve reserve reserve reserves losses Subtotal interests Total

0% TERES FER
RE  ROEE  BERE  RABR  EfEE  AEEE BREER  REER iR M EEER &8
HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS000
Tin TR T Fin TR Thn ThR ThRL ThR Tin TR T
451,716 804,495 6,302 78791 335,018 (131,671) 41912 - (1441619 144,043 22 145,175
24 26 - - - - - - - 550 - 550
Q81 64314 - - - - - - - 107,191 - 107,191
43101 64,640 - - - - - - - 107,741 - 107,741
- - - - - - - - (175,294) (175.294) (338) (175,632)
_ _ - - - (1,029) - - - (1,029 - (1,029
- - - - - (1,029 - - (175,294) (176,323) (338) (176,661)
94,817 869,135 6,302 78,791 335,018 (132,700) 41912 - (1616909 76,361 (106) 76,255
494817 866,992 6,302 8,791 158,104 (146,299) 4931 - (1,908,824) (430,740) (543) (431,283)
- - - - - - (3,016) - 3,016 - - -
- o - = = - - 3933 - 3933 - 3,033
215512 183,185 - - - - - - - 398,697 - 398,697
215512 183,185 - - - - (3,016) 3933 3,016 402630 - 402630
- - - - - - - - 690,292 690,292 (41 689,815
- - - - - (8,736) - - - 8,736) - 8,736)
- - - - - (8,736) - - 690,292 681,556 (4mm) 681,079
70329 1,050,177 6,302 78,791 168,104 (155,035) 46,361 3938 (1,245,516) 653,446 (1,020) 652,426
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UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEERCERGRAERER

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated by financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

Effects of exchange rate changes of
the balance of cash held
in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period

REXBARESFR
RERBMARESFR

BMERBME
B

AeMREeFEEA
Bepilihes s

B zHiEe Rk
ReEHFEEA

MR H A IMNER &

magmE e

HIRZHE R
ReEERE

Six months ended 30 June
BEAA=1THLAMEA

2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEEZ)
(53,965) (43,868)
(5,045) (20,985)
62,747 53,019
3,737 (11,834)
(2,111) 13,474
(116) ©)
1,510 1,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
16 November 2001 as an exempted company under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On
14 October 2010, the Company deregistered in the
Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as
an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda
effective on 14 October 2010. The registered office of
the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong is Room 1514-1515,
15/F., Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No.1 Science
Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Company is
principally engaged in investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group include film production and
distribution, the provision of management services to
artistes, event coordination, provision of travel related
products and operations of film studio and hotels.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”),
including compliance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 34 Interim Financial Reporting
and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 18 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

REMBRRHE

— B E R

BRREVIEERERAGN_ZZT —F
T—ATARBRBEREEEENFE2E QA
E(—NAR—EENS - i e kMg EHE
HEAMK I AER R AR - R —FF
TATIABE AATRRFESESHETM:
WRBAREENEXNRBRENERER
AEAFE R —ZTF+A+TMBER -
7K 7 B 7 i % = B & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° 7Z<
NEIMBEBETEEEWHBMRBTBENLELRD
HEZ2EE1REZESM AR KE 151
1514-1515% ©

ARRABBA (TRA]) RBEZPTGEM £ » A
RAETEBRFREER - AEBZ T BER
BREFHEERET REBAEERS -
mEGE  RHIREABERMNEEFEN
FBEJE ©

AEEZEREEMHRER AT (B
MARRRININEEER) 25 - BrRAEHEHIN
FEBBEHMELAZRROIN TR (F
BTl .

#n PLIL e

AEBZ REEZEPRAVBEREIER
Bt X FTGEM#E % F AR A ([GEM LR Al )
CEAEBERY (RREETEESHAAY
([BERETMAG )G BB ER(F
BEER]) B4R PHYBERERRE)
M GEM ETRBIE 18 EMB TR THRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(Continued)

On 10 July 2019, the Company invited all known
creditors of the Company to make an offer to the
Company for possible restructuring transaction,
which has received substantial support from most
of the creditors. On 26 August 2019, the Company
put forward the proposed scheme of arrangement
pursuant to Section 99 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and Section 670 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, further details of
which are disclosed on pages 45 to 53 of this report
and the Company’s announcements dated 30 July,
12 August, 19 August, 20 September, 8 October, 14
October, 8 November, 19 November, 27 November, 15
December 2019, 7 January, 25 February, 8 March and
20 March 2020 and the circular of the Company dated
20 September 2019. Further announcements will be
made by the Company to update the shareholders of
the Company and investors on further progress of the
financial restructuring and relevant court proceedings.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group
incurred a profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$690,292,000 (2019:
loss of approximately HK$175,294,000). As at 30
June 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$209,712,000 (31 December
2019: net current liabilities of approximately
HK$1,815,887,000).

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that might cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as going concern. In order
to improve the Group’s financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the
Group as a going concern, the Director have adopted
several measure, including (1) obtaining various credit
facilities of aggregate HK$175,000,000 with the interest
rate carrying from 6.5% to 12.0% available for the
Group’s working capital and its financial obligations;
(2) the possible fund-raising activities with the investor,
further details of which are disclosed on pages 55 to
59 of this report and (3) the Group has extended the
maturity date of an loan agreement in relation to a loan
amounting to approximately HK$82,279,277 as at 31
December 2019 to 30 June 2023. On the basis of the
foregoing, and after assessing the Group’s current and
forecasted cash positions, the Directors are satisfied
that the Group will be able to settle the Group’s liabilities
when they become due.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2020
should be read in conjunction with the annual financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

PRI =)

R-ZZ—NFELtA+H AQRFEBMBELD
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AR EREEERERFTEEVHEAR
HEERFRANE—FPER -

BE-_Z-_ZFA=1tHIL~EA &X&
B E £ RN E A ARG R T 4690,292,000
BT (ZZE—NLF : E51849175,294,000%87T) ©
R-ZZE_TEXAZ+H AEEERHE
& F 5 4209,712,000/8 L (ZE—hFE+ =
A=+—H: n® & & FF4%1,815887,000
BIT) °
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WBEEFERNEATETREEZ  ARELRE
BBk IR RSHESRRESRE
WEREBAFELE  EECHRMNLEIEE
BIE(1)ERA 175,000,000 TH & EEZE
E FENF65%E12.0% BIERER
MEEESRUMBEE: QFKBERES
ETEERE EHE—SHBENARSESE
55E50BEFHE  RQAEECKE S5
482,279,277 BT E R E AN E R
WEBMBR - ZE-—NAF+_A=+—HEE
EFT_=FRNA=ZTH - ER Ll &5FF
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AEEEBEISREAERBENEERAE -

BHE-Z-_ZTFENA=1THLERNEAAZALE
EZERRAVEREREREALSEHE_Z
—NFE+T_A=+—BIFEZEEFHER
K—OFEIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain property, film
studio and financial instruments that are measured at
revalued amount or fair values. The accounting policies
and methods of computation used in the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 are the same
as those followed in the preparation of the annual
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition
of Material

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in this interim report. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

mERBHERME

3. EEEFBUR

BETYUE FERIERTIAREMEHE
HRAEFEIN NEBZREEZEAL
EUMBHRRIBRBEELR AL RE  BEZ
EoEFERA=ZTHIERBAZREEZS
PG BRERMEBZ G BERFTES
FERHBE_T-NAF+T_A=1+—HL
FEZARBEFEVBHRRMEBEMRR -

ERGMASCBMUTEEYBREE
AIMERTA  ZEEITARAEBEENNE
AR B R AR

o  EBEBMBMEEEIN  EBNEE

e BAEVBMEEAFEIR FEFFE
FHERIE RN BB B MEEANET
SREERIA - R R AR E

o AESMENEIRRBFEGHELNSR
BHMERI A BEAMER

ZEERBEESAHMLATHMAEEE
BRBBARR AT RENRELZS T
AELABARFE AEBAERAREAES
H ) 10 R A S0 (R T8 2 B sl iR R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

4. REVENUE AND OTHER 4. WA R H AU A
INCOME
Revenue derived from the Group’s principal activities HNERREANEBE T EEBHRADLT -

recognised during the period is as follows:

Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June
BZEXA=tHL=M@A BERA=TtHLREAR
2020 2019 2020 2019
b g 223 —Z-NE “Z-Ef “Z-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER FET TER THT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER) (REER) (REER)

Revenue from contracts with ERMBREENFE 155
customers within the scope of HEREFEONNE

HKFRS 15, disaggregated by REIZERSRERES
major products or services lines:
Artiste management fee income SATEERA 7 9 7 27
Hotel room income R RRA 1,107 3,769 3,088 6,806
Food and beverage income BHIA 2,684 6,182 6,264 12,600
Entrance fee income EON 558 17,035 3,372 35,084
Sales of travel related products HERTIHBER 87 2,144 313 2,408
Sales of goods EmiEE 50 598 101 1,628
Ancillary services FRERS 254 5,936 1,070 10,223
Consultation Income BRI - - - 105
4,573 35,673 14,215 68,881
Rental income BelA 1,066 12,081 2,000 20,426
5,639 47,754 16,215 89,307
Timing of revenue recognition: WA R -
At a point of time R (AR5 3,204 23,306 10,050 51,720
Over time R — BB 1,369 12,367 4,165 17,161
4,573 35,673 14,215 68,881
Other income HitA
Bank interest income BITHIEHA - 28 - 28
Government subsidy BT 8 4,141 - 4,141 -
Others Hit 3,097 1,464 5,700 1,929
7,238 1492 9,841 1957

1 2 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited B &Rt EMERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group is currently
organised into the following operating segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

— Production and distribution
of films, provision of
travel related products,
provision of management
services to artistes and
event coordination

— Operation of film studio

— Operation of hotel

Films production and
distribution, sales of
travel related
products, artiste
management and
event coordination

Film studio operation

Hotel operation

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

S.

mERBHERME

5 R

AEBILEBRHNEEELER - RAERD
RERZBRFHENRARNEERSETHRE R
AB(AEBEERRE ((EERERRE]))
ETRMERREN —BOA > NEER D
FRA TR D AR - AL B B E D EA G
VA#RK S5 2 350 &6

B BERET - — BERBITEY -
HERITIEES - AT
BATRLIDAE & ABARM

ERRYLED
=
WLEF
BAR — EBEN
EEEE — G

BRAAREER 2RO MO MERZAT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. H#ER &)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results PBRARFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and LWTAEAERD IS AEFRRAKE
results by reportable segments: BEOH
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management Inter-
and event  Film studio Hotel segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
E¥ §'z1’l5 &
7 %%
Bﬁﬁ*ﬁ B
Em-BA
EBK
EEBRE FRBLE BERE HHEEH “weE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TET TER TER TER
Six months ended BE-Z-Z%5A
30 June 2020 (Unaudited) =+HERER
(REER)
Revenue from external customers  JRE MR EEHIUA 320 6,047 9,848 - 16,215
Inter-segment revenue AEERA - - 46 (46) -
Reportable segment revenue A2HHBRA 320 6,047 9,894 (46) 16,215
Reportable segment loss AEHRHDERE (9,576) (33,388) (24,472) - (67,436)
Impact on financial restructuring B B ERMT E 854,269
Net exchange losses EXEEFE (12,752)
Other income Hil A 9,841
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 Bl A Al (9,498)
Finance costs BEMKAK (84,609)
Profit before income tax BR T B AT I 689,815

1 4 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl &R %Xt &£@HER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

mERBHERME

5. A ER &)

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continueq) PBRAREE ()
Films
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management Inter-
and event Film studio Hotel segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
EXEIER
BT HE
IRITIEE
Em E2A
EER
EESE  FRNLE BESE  DHERH BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THL TR THT THL
Six months ended BE-Z-h%5XA
30 June 2019 (Unaudited) =t+HIERER
(REER)
Revenue from external Customers 2R 5 SNRE B AU A 2,435 66,657 20,215 - 89,307
Inter-segment revenue A EBEURA - - 134 (134) -
Reportable segment revenue A2H/DHRA 2,435 66,657 20,349 (134) 89,307
Reportable segment AE2RHH
(loss)/revenue (B8) /B (7,971) 10,814 (24,716) - (21,8793)
Other income HA 1,957
Unallocated corporate expenses R 2B A AIF X (9,664)
Net exchange losses EHEETE (1,816)
Finance costs REKK (144,236)
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIEE (175,632)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers and inter-segment sales during
the period.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs including directors’ salaries, waiver of interest
of convertible bond, loss on early redemption of
convertible bond, amortisation, other operating income
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

EREHHPWAERARBINAZLHUA
Koy B HE -

DHMEBRESIBEENER  ERALED
RPRITERA(BREZHFE  RRUTER
BEOHNE REBLOATERES ZEE -
B HOKEWRARBERA) - LIRS
FRERRFBDRREAMA LT BRLERKE
BEWFTETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

5. b ER#)

THEERAR

Films production

and distribution,

sales of travel

related products,

artiste

management Film
and event studio Hotel

coordination operation operation Total

BYHER

BT #E

HRTRBER

EAEER
EBRE FRELE BELE aeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TR TEx

At 30 June 2020 (Unaudited) R-B-2EXA=1R
(RBER)

Reportable segment assets EFIHEE 8,559 1,157,186 800,023 1,965,768
Property, plant and equipment ER S E 950
Unallocated corporation assets FPIRAAEE 51,189
Consolidated assets GREE 2,017,907
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI PEE (8,746) (137,486) (39,741) (185,973)
Loans from shareholders RERRHER (1,753)
Borrowings BE (147,589)
Convertible bonds HRRES (826,027)
Promissory notes EES (47,000)
Deferred tax liabities BEHESR (99,500)
Provision for income tax FiETEE (2,951)
Unallocated corporation liabilties KARRFEE (54,688)
Consolidated liabilities RAEE (1,365,481)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl &R %Xt &£@HER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBHERME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &R )

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continueq)

THEERER(E)

Films production

and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management Film
and event studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
BYRIER
B8
RTEBER
ZAEER
EERE 2 BELE BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FEL T
At 31 December 2019 (Audited) RZB-AERA=TH
(8287)
Reportable segment assets EFIHEE 11,383 1,188,066 823,807 2,023,256
Property, plant and equipment ER S E 14
Cash and cash equivalents ReRiieSEES 273
Unallocated corporation assets FOBEAREE 1,608
Consolidated assets RREE 2,025,151
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI PEE (10,937) (135,858) (31,897) (178,692)
Loans from shareholder RERRHER (589,457)
Borrowings BE (227,040)
Bonds & (1,153,289)
Promissory Note RREE (115,197)
Deferred tax liabilties BEHESR (99,500)
Provision for income tax FiETEE (2.951)
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARARIEE (90,314)
Consolidated liabilities GREfE (2,456,434)

Interim Report 2020 —Z - ZFHhHHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. #EER 2
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance BERDERBEERDHBEIERER

and allocating resources between segments:

0|

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments — BRREBEIN FBEEEIEZESM
other than corporate assets; and 2% E &

N

AAAEN FERERAHREST
AW -

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - 23
255

other than corporate liabilities.

Other segment information Hittn HEH

Films production

and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management and Film
event studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
BYAERRT
HERTIE
Bl BAEER EA
EHRE e BELE BeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FEL T
At 30 June 2020 (Unaudited) RZBZBERA=TH
(REER)
Depreciation of property, plant and n% - BRERIENE
equipment 495 12,697 14,321 27,513
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE - 5,756 1,122 6,878
Addition to non-current assets REFTIEE 32 6,047 7 6,986
At 30 June 2019 (Unaudited) RZE-AEXA=TH
(REEK)
Depreciation of property, plant and n% - BERIENE
equipment 683 15,791 15,344 31,818
Amortisation of land lease Prepayments T3t ST & - 5,756 1,122 6,878
Addition to non-current assets REERHEE 68 22,945 173 23,186

1 8 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited B &Rt EMERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBHERME

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are
principally attributable to the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) including Hong Kong (being the place of
domicile of the major companies comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the contracts are negotiated and
entered with the customers. The total revenue from
external customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance lease charges HEHEER
Interest on bonds BHHE
Interest on convertible bonds ARRESTS
Interest on promissory note ERZBRHNE
Interest on loan from shareholders BREERRFE

Interest on unsecured other borrowings E 4t &K R EEF| 8
Interest on secured other borrowings ~ E B EREEF &

S.

6.

1 & k(@)

HEE R

AEERMBRALRFRBDEEHDTERE S
FARAME(THE) (BFEER) (IAEE

BETEZRRIPTEHME) o

EPHEENDENETFPER MK AN
MALEME - KEIBEPHBLRAETER

B e

il AR

Three months ended 30 June
BEXA=THL=M@A

Six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THLERER

2020 2019 2020 2019

g 2.2 —E-hE ZBIER —Z-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER FHET TET THT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Gl CRgmEz) PGSl CREEZ)
415 444 829 884

18,564 57,197 41,491 103,254

506 - 506 -

- 2,003 - 4,186

16,959 13,087 33,919 27,740
1,944 800 2,530 2,903

2,697 1,328 5,334 5,269
41,085 74,949 84,609 144,236

Interim Report 2020 —E=-ZFHh K&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

7. IMPACT ON FINANCIAL
RESTRUCTURING

Three months ended 30 June
BEXA=THL=MEA

2020 2019
“E-NF
HK$'000
AT
(Unaudited)
(REER)

SR L

HK$’000
TER
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

(

7. HH B AL Y R

Six months ended 30 June
BZEAA=1HIEREAR

2020 2019
S8l -T-n%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

TN CRAEEZ)

REEARHUEITA SR
B F R R

Carrying amount of liabilities settled
by issue of convertible bonds and

new shares under the restructuring B EHREE

transaction 2,082,419 - 2,082,419 -
Fair value of convertible bonds BEEERHETH

issued pursuant to the restructuring AR EEHN A (E

transaction (829,454) - (829,454) -
Fair the value of new sharesissued ~ IRIFEEAR HEITHHR

pursuant to the restructuring HOAAE

transaction (398,696) - (398,696) -

854,269 - 854,269 -

The fair value of the convertible bonds is determined
by the directors of the Company with reference to
the valuation report prepared by an independent
professional valuer, by applying discounted cash
flow model on the liability component and Binomial
Tree Model on the equity component and derivative
component, if any.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

HMBEEFHAABIHARRERLSE
BYEXGHEMBENGERS  KAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RERBRRME

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE 8. BRI BLwI A, (kiH)
INCOME TAX
Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THL={EA BEXA=THLAEAR

2020 2019 2020 2019

b g 223 “Z-NE ZECER “Z-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FRT TERr THT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER) (REER) (REER)

Profit/(loss) before income tax is BRETERAIRE (B8)
arived at after charging [REICNTE=SE
Auditor's remuneration et Gl s 250 212 500 425
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FAEEEN & 3,439 3,439 6,878 6,878
Depreciation of property, Plantand ~ #1% * BE k&R E
equipment 24,867 28,951 27,514 31,818
Employee benefit expenses EEEREX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BEEEHS)
Salaries and allowances Fo Rk 10,712 13,278 22,401 25,746
Contributions to retirement benefits R /RiEF5+ 81 3%
schemes 492 1,104 1,111 2,119

11,204 14,382 23,512 27,865
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the
six months ended 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil) as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits in Hong
Kong during these periods.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not been
provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred losses for
taxation purpose for both periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER
SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$690,292,000 (2019:
loss of approximately HK$175,294,000) and the
weighted average of approximately 4,999,322,000
(2019: approximately 4,767,083,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the period.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the profit/(loss)
attributable to the owners of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 was the same
as basic loss per share as the impact of the exercise of
the share options, warrants and convertible bonds is
anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2020
(2019: Nil).

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl &R %Xt &£@HER AT

10.

11.

Jir £ Bt B X

HRAEERBEE T -TFA=THIE
FE A I A R A A R SR T & A 5”(
I B B 2 BB RS B B (=
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Fy A A B B % B 0 R ME B R 19 85 A5 B S S
B Y ELTPEMRMEHR (HER25%)
TR -

Bt T I 7 A B BT T 1 AR A R 4
9 AT R o

BN, OEH)

BREARR (B HIREAAREER A
JE A5 71 58 49690,292,0008 7T (—F — L4 ¢
E5 18 47175,294,000/8 1) R I AN E B 17%
A% 89 hn A 7 15 2149 4,999,322,000 f (= =
— & #94,767,083,000 %) 5+ & -

RRTEREAE  RAEE R AT RES A
EREBEYE HMBE_ZT_ZEFR_F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RERBRRME

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12. W3 ~ W5 Bk i
EQUIPMENT
At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R=Z=-ZF RZZE—N%F
~B=1H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (f&EZ)
At 1 January Hn—A—H 1,400,027 1,683,190
Additions: NE
Property, plant and equipment LES &L 7,005 36,470
Deficit on valuation fHEE A - (235,879)
Disposal HE (731) (83)
Depreciation e (27,514) (63,582)
Exchange realignment M H (17,415) (20,089)
1,361,372 1,400,027
The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings EXREET M REFREENSTET

shown above are situated on:

At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R-z-zs QI
AA=+H +=ZA=+—¢H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Land in Hong Kong under medium-term R E B P EAEE T

leases = -
Land in the PRC under medium-term leases iz /A /1 Bl ) b BRFE & £+ 4 7,331 7,679
7,331 7,679
As at 30 June 2020, hotel properties and the film studio RZEZTFA=+H" /EE EYSS -2
had not been revaluated and had been included in the WA EETER YR T _FTF A=
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of B % £ AR5 B #9453,713,0007% 7T & 4
approximately HK$453,713,000 and approximately 824,643,000 TLaT ALR A B SR o

HK$824,643,000 respectively as at 30 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 12. W3 ~ Wl et (4

24

EQUIPMENT (Continuea)

Hotel properties were revaluated on 31 December
2019 and 2018 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”)
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. RHL is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of properties in the relevant location. The revaluation
deficit of approximately HK$3,195,000 (2018: surplus
of approximately HK$32,102,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$799,000 (2018: approximately HK$8,026,000) was
debited to properties revaluation reserve in the amount
of approximately HK$2,396,000 (2018: credited
to properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$24,076,000). If the hotel properties had not
been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$453,713,000 (2018: approximately
HK$453,713,000) as at 31 December 2019.

Film Studio were revaluated on 31 December 2019
and 2018 by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. The revaluation deficit of
approximately HK$232,684,000 (2018: deficit of
approximately HK$60,739,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$58,171,000 (2018: approximately HK$15,185,000)
was debited to properties revaluation reserve in
the amount of approximately HK$174,513,000
(2018: debited to properties revaluation reserve of
approximately HK$45,554,000). If the film studio had
not been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$836,095,000 (2018: approximately
HK$818,434,000) as at 31 December 2019.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

BEVER-_ZE—NEFER_ZE—NF+=A
=+ —BA@EXMITHEBEMERRE ([XF
7] —2EAEEEBRENBLAEARKSE
EAHER) BfE - XFITAEBNEMBER
B ABAEESHKRBITHNIERE DE
T EEAEE - E 14 B 41493,195,000% 70 (=
T— \4F : B#4132,102,00058 7T) 1% i@ A
Y IR 3T T 15 T K 62 49 799,00078 7T (Z &2 — N\
1 #8,026,000%8 0) ER M EE G HEETP
MK 492,396,000 7L (ZF — \F - R¥Z
B FEET T A 424,076,000 7T) © #E &
MEWEETERS  EBR_T-NLF+=
A=+—HB&E A4 458,713,000 (=
T — )\ 4F : 49453,713,000/8 7T) 5t A4 4 Bf
MK ©

ERHRER - NEFR-_F-NFTHA
Tt AR ERNGEAERAT (—R
BAEEERENB LA BRI EMERM) E
fi o B {65 41 49 232,684,000 7T (Z T — N\
F ¢ BHAN#4960,739,000 7% JT) 1k iE A HY I IE
FriS K % 4958,171,0008 L (ZZ— N\ F :
#915,185,0007% 7T) B R Y1 E & & 5%
#9174,513,0008 T (ZE—NF : RYES
s FEH P 40 49 45,554,00078 7T) © i 5248
Rig&E B —_E—-hAE+-_A=+—
B /) FF % 5K 7K %9836,095,00078 7T (ZZE— N\
F 1 #9818,434,0008 7T) st AR A B SR K -

REES LN A AERS NENSEREE
P ARG -



12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continuea)

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBHERME

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these hotel properties and film studio are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the key
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

As at 31 December 2019:

12. W3 ~ W5 Bkt (&)

TREHRBAZSAENEREZEBNRR
BEE CCERMAMKERMEEZZE A

BB WER U AR

AN
YNpIV

FAERRAR

BEAETEGABEBNHATEREEND BN
RABERR(F-—REE=R) -

RZE—NF+=—A=+—8:

Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and Significant
Element hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs Range/Amount  Sensitivity
nE DAEER HERWRIZBABE BEXTUBERAYE HE/¢8 HBE
Hotel Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach  Replacement costs of RMB650,000,000  The higher the costs
properties (based on current cost of replacement  constructions hotel (2018: RMB663,000,000) of constructions, the
of the improvements, less allowance properties higher the fair values
for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation)
EENZ  £=R WEEENAE (ERNERERS  BEVERRANEE ARH6500000007c REKART DAE
EERA BREREALR-8H KA (Z2-NE&: i)
TAMRERE(L B BEL IR AE663,000,0007T)
Fimstudio  Level 3 Income approach-discounted cashflow  Discount, rate 14.00%  The higher the discount
approach (2018: 14.00%) rate, the lower the fair
value
6221 E=R WAE-ERRERER BRE 1400% EREAR AAEAR

(ZZ—\F : 14.00%)

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of
the Group was approximately HK$7,331,000 (2019:

RmEBR AEEREVEHAEREOE
S REFEY A7,331,0008 L (=
— & : 498,062,000/ 7T)

approximately HK$8,062,000).
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 13. i I RE &
Land Office
lease premises and
prepayment staff quarters Total
WABFR
TSRS BEIBSE wst
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET
As at 1 January 2020 RZZFE_TF—H—H
(Audited) (fe&=%) 357,317 2,901 360,218
Additions NE - - -
Depreciation expense WERX (6,878) - (6,878)
Exchange realignment M B - - -
As at 30 June 2020 R-ZZFFR
(Unaudited) =+HCREFEZ) 350,439 2,901 353,340
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging
from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers. The ageing
analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
dates, net of impairment loss, are stated as follows:

14. FEW B 5wk JH

AEBEREEZEPREHNEESN —KR B30
E90H - BREZFIBEREZAMZ Nk
RERE) WiREDITIOT -

0 to 60 days 0Z£60H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 91£E180H
Over 180 days @180 H

At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R-B-BHE R-ZT—hF
ANB=+H +=—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (f&FE%Z)
114 15,621

81 6,218

2,965 23,632
65,470 29,713
68,630 75,184

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$68,435,000 (31
December 2019: approximately HK$53,345,000) which
have been past due at the reporting date. The Group
has not recognised any impairment loss for these trade
receivables on the basis of (a) payments were noted
from these customers during the current period and (b)
the management would make its best efforts to collect
these outstanding balances and believes that these
outstanding balances will be substantially recoverable at
the end of 2020. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Directors considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these amounts have short
maturity periods at their inception.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited B &Rt EMERA A

s A5 2 BREE 4 5 68,435,000/8 L (=
—NFE+-A=+—8 : 453,345,000 JT)
MEWGERRE e - NEE T &
RZEERWESREERTARESE &
KEAQRAFHEIZIREZSEELY
NEEOEREEEFAB HNKEZERE
BHRE VYEBEEZSHRBEELEBKRITS
BARZE_TFRKE - A% B W EZ
LEBMFHTAIEAR -

EERA BHRERESFEONRELRE
HINEH SEAAERRAEYEEAESR -



15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RERBRRME

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group has been granted by its suppliers’ credit
periods ranging from 30 to 60 days. The ageing analysis
of trade payables based on the invoice dates are stated
as follows:

15. WEAF § 5wk JH

REBEHMEERRTI0E0HNEER-
JEN B SRR ERZ A2 MR DT

At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R=ZZB=2F RZE—NF
NB=1H +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (&%)
0-30 days 0£30H 872 1,382
31-60 days 31£60H 4,585 1,365
61-90 days 61290H 2,971 1,070
91-180 days 912180 H 2,764 14,724
Over 180 days #1180 H 24,382 17,531
35,574 36,072
U £
LOANS FROM 16. iR B 5k
SHAREHOLDERS

Loans from shareholders were unsecured, with the
interest rate ranging from 5%-15% and repayable
within one year.

BRENERABEETR  FENFE5%E15% -

WAR—FREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RR N

17. BONDS 17. &z
REE-T-FEAA=+ALAEA"
ADRAMBETHES R -F_FFXA
STAR ARRARBAAANEER S
17 A RIR 5 B AR LA B AR A BT K
B i 55 o

No new bonds were issued by the Company during the
six months ended 30 June 2020. On 29 June 2020,
all outstanding bonds of the Company were settled by
issuance of convertible bonds and new shares of the
Company pursuant to the Company’s restructuring
transaction.

The movement for the period on the bonds of the AHBARABESFNEBNT ¢
Company was as follows:

30 June 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-hF
NB=1H +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (&%)
Balance at 1 January R—A—HZ&#% 1,153,283 1,023,319
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITEF TS KIE - 526,871
Transaction cost allocated to the liability NREBEBLIHRS
component %N - (24,302)
Interest expense (note 6) F B (Hiz6) 41,491 144,797
Interest paid during the year FARAEMFE - (35,398)
Repayment during the year FAEE - (482,004)
Settled by issuance of convertible bonds AT R AR(E H &
and new shares A B 77 A (1,194,774) -
Closing balance YRR A5 84 - 1,153,283
Carrying amount repayable: AR TERAEEREZ
BRMEE
Within one year —F K - 769,105
More than one year but not exceeding —FUEETHBBEME
two years - 220,088
More than two years nut not exceeding MF A EETBARF
five years - 91,612
More than five years AFEUE - 72,478
- 1,153,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROMISSORY NOTES

PN 4

On 14 April 2018, the promissory note with principal
amount of HK$104,640,000 (the “PN 4”) at par
value was issued to settle part of the principal and
interest accrued on the CB5 in accordance with the
supplementary loan agreement dated 14 April 2018
entered into between the Company and Mr. Sin. The
PN 4 has a maturity of approximately 27 months from
the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 8% per
annum, accrued monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

On 29 June 2020, the PN 4 was settled by issuance
of convertible bonds and new shares of the Company
pursuant to the Company’s restructuring transaction.

PN 5

On 18 March 2020, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$14,100,000 (‘PN 5”)
at par value in accordance with the share subscription
facility agreement dated 13 March 2020 entered into
among between GEM Gilobal Yield LLC SCS and GEM
Yield Bahamas Ltd and the Company. The PN 5 has
a maturity of 1 year from the date of issue and bear
coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN 5 are denominated
in HK$.

PN 6

On 18 March 2020, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$14,100,000 (‘PN 6”)
at par value in accordance with the share subscription
facility agreement dated 13 March 2020 entered into
among between GEM Gilobal Yield LLC SCS and GEM
Yield Bahamas Ltd and the Company. The PN 6 has
a maturity of 2 years from the date of issue and bear
coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN 6 are denominated
in HK$.

mERBHERME

18. 7 it 5 9%

ARLEE4

RZZE—N\FNA+IOB  RIEAQFEEL
FRVAEBAZTS - N\FHATMNAZER
Wt R EEZTA S A 104,640,000
B ELEERE(RREE4])) UEFERL
ABRESF B RS RERFAFE - &R
ZHRARBETHREFO T @A £
BIRFFE8% T AR WHEREHAZH
AT e

RZE-ZZFXA-Z+NH BEAQIFN
EHERGETANG A BRESKFRD D
FREMNEAREZEA -

AARES

RZZF-_FF=A+=H AREREGEM
Global Yield LLC SCS * GEM Yield Bahamas
AR ARBMAIVARR-_E_FF=A
t=AMBRERREREHAREERTAS
#17314,100,000 7 7T B & 5 R IR ([ R R iR
5)) - A RES B EITHME 1 FREE
FRRENE4I%THR  REMT - &R
SRS ETTAHE

ALEE6

RZZF-_FF=A+=H AREREGEM
Global Yield LLC SCS * GEM Yield Bahamas
AR ARBMAIVARR-_E_FF=A
t=AMBRERREEHAREERTAS
#17314,100,000 7 7T B & 5 R IR (R R R iR
6)) - FARE6BEITHMB2FRE
FRRENERI%THR  REXMT - &R
FER6ETTAHE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

18. PROMISSORY NOTES (continued) 9. W ¥BMEFF (&)

PN7

On 18 March 2020, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$18,800,000 (‘PN 77)
at par value in accordance with the share subscription
facility agreement dated 13 March 2020 entered into
among between GEM Gilobal Yield LLC SCS and GEM
Yield Bahamas Ltd and the Company. The PN 7 has
a maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and bear
coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily and

ARLEET

RZEZZEF=A+=H KAFIREGEM
Global Yield LLC SCS + GEM Yield Bahamas
AR ARBIMEI VAR T _FF= A
TZHENRERNEEBBEEERITAS
¥ /18,800,0008 TTHY A H Z2E (R HEE
70) c RFEERTBEITHMEET IFEIIE
ZERFNEI%THRF  BFL o A& A
W7 ABTTEHE -

payable annually in arrears. The PN 7 are denominated

in HKS.
The movement for the period on the PN4, PN5, PNG BN AR R4 AR EES  AREE6R
and PN7 were as follows: AHEE7TEENOT
PN4 PN5 PN6 PN7
RAEE4 AREES  RAEE6 RAEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TEL TETL TEL
Balance at 1 January 2019 (audited) “E-NEF-A—-RHZ
e (&%) 106,477 - - -
Effective interest expenses ERAEHRE 8,720 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 and -NWNE+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 (audited) RZZZZF-R—AZ
e (EER) 115,197 = = =
Settled by issuance of convertible DBTARRESRRHH
bonds and new shares HFRER (115,197) - - -
Issuance of promissory note BIIARRE - 14,100 14,100 18,800
Balance at 30 June 2020 (unaudited) RZE-ZFXA=FHZ
e (REER) - 14,100 14,100 18,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB6

In 2019, a winding up petition together with appointment
of provisional liquidators of the Company on a light
touch approach for financial restructuring purposes
was presented and filed with the Supreme Court of
Bermuda. The purpose of the financial restructuring
is to allow the Group to seek to better preserve value
and business operations of the Group. As part of the
Company’s financial restructuring plans, the Company
invited all known creditors of the Company to make
an offer to the Company to subscribe for convertible
bonds to be issued by the Company and new shares of
the Company. The Company has received substantial
support from its creditors regarding its financial
restructuring plans and the plans were proceeded
accordingly.

Pursuant the Company’s financial restructuring plans,
on 29 June 2020, the Company issued convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,244,876,198 (“CB6").

The conversion price for CB6, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.55 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB6 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$500,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares form the date of issue of the CB6
up to and including the date falling on the 5th day
immediately prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB6 shall be entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by way of
allotment and issuance of new shares of the Company
at the conversion price on the due day of the interest
payment in lieu of payment by cash by giving not less
than 2 business days’ written notice prior to the due
date for payment of interest. Such interest conversion
arrangement is only applicable to the 1% per annum
interest payment. The Company may redeem the
CB6 at any time prior to the maturity date in whole or
any part at the principal amount of such CB6 thereof
plus interest accrued thereon up to the actual date of
redemption by giving to the bond holder not less than
5 business days’ written notice of its intention to make
such redemption.

mERBHERME

19. Wl AR 77
EABTRRES

RIZE-NF AEBERBRERSERZX
ERRRBEREF  BRNEIERS ] ER
FREARFBRRBERAAEM B EAE -
BEHAEHESASEEZEHWREAKEN
BEEREKLE -FRAQAMBEAS
B —#0 ARABRAEC AR R R EE
ANBELEFE  URBHHAAREITH AR
BEFRARBFED - AR E S EM B
ERMEESHBERANIE R EIEHE
THREHETT ©

BIEARARMEEHRTE  AQAKR=
TZEFNAZATNAABTASBRER
1,244,876,198 8 JLH) A] R E 5 ([ /< #E A
BRER])

ERMAMBESNERERERL BN
0.5587C * AKX —RFBAAMRMR - AR
ARREFETEHEEEXINYAMER
B (BREZA)HE FRRATERRESHAR
BERNEHE (HEEFEAR500,000/8 T HE
TRER) AT 2R A0 B E R o

FARLATRBESHNFAEAGERIBNE
BRAARAREL IR 2EEXAMNE@ERE
o BRENBIHANERESBREN
BTARBMNFRO KAENHNE (28K
D) URBIRES M - F B HBRL TR E
ARBEFENEA%IHOFE « AREAEB
ABRSHBEABZH TP REEZEXANEHRA
MRTEABEHABERR T AN EHA
EARERRERNLEATRRESFOASFEER
BEEERBEORHAILNEFNE BEER2
BB F N AL A HRAESF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

19. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB6 (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the CB6
was calculated using future repayments discounted
at an estimate discount rate of 9.85% per annum.
The residual amount of approximately HK$3,933,000
(being the difference between the fair value of the
CB6 at issuance date and the fair value of the liability
component on initial recognition) is assigned as the
equity component and is included in equity heading
convertible bond equity reserve. The liability component
is subsequently stated at fair value, with changes
recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

The fair value of the convertible bonds is determined
by the directors of the Company with reference to
the valuation report prepared by an independent
professional valuer, by applying discounted cash
flow model on the liability component and Binomial
Tree Model on the equity component and derivative
component, if any.

19. Wl A 57 (%)

EABTRRES ()

FEARUATREESABERONARENERE
F9.85% AT R ITRRFERMAE -
| #4 © ¥R 493,933,000 7T (BN 55 /< HE 7T # fix
BHFNBETEHNAREBEERAGIEDRIIF
ERENRLENZR) BRAER BN MGt
ARBREFERFEHENEREAT - BER
DEHBBEARENE ARZHNGAES
KB A 2 W R ARSI o

ARREFHRIAETTRARBEELRE
BUYEEGHEMBHENOGERS KAEE
MoMBRRSRRE KR E D M7 LR
7 (IE) ) — X EBREETE -

CB6
F Nt
ARRES
HK$’000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2020 (Audited) RZT_TF—-A—-BNER(EER) -
Fair value of liability components on initial T ERASAERSHAAE
recognition 825,521
Effective interest expenses (note 6) ERF SR (fFEe) 506
Balance at 30 June 2020 (Unaudited) RZBEZTFRNA=THBOES CREEZR) 826,027
Balance at 30 June 2020 (Unaudited) R-ZB-EFXNA=ZTHZHEHR REER)
CB6
- aeiid
ARRES
HK$’000
FET
Carrying amount repayable ERUTHRANEEZEZRAEE
More than one year but not exceeding five years —F A _FBAF AR 826,027
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

mERBHERME

20. B AR

Contracted but not provided for: SHEEES: T
Construction of properties LE e

Authorised but not contracted for: BHLEBKRETA -
Construction of properties LE e

At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R-B-BHE R-ZT—hF
ANB=+H +=—A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (f&FE%Z)
75,478 78,389
328,551 334,411

Note: Capital commitment for construction of properties
related to capital commitment for construction of film
studio and hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised
amount was approved by the Directors according to the
land lease agreements signed between the Group and
the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the
leasing of lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations.

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements, during
the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group
paid interest of approximately HK$265,000 (2019:
approximately HK$29,157,000) to a shareholder and
director of the Company.

The emoluments paid or payable to key management
personal during the six months ended 30 June
2020 was approximately HK$3,332,000 (2019:
HK$2,222,000).

Biat - )3 AR ) B AN R HE R B R o B R 4L 7 R
PR SO JE BB AR EYE o IRIBEASE R
RGBT AR AT B L E
(NEBBEE LA RIRE % KRR
EBMBERLE)  FHRESECHAESI

e ©

21. B TT R 5

BRACEZEREATBEHRRANEME S
FIEEIN REBEE-_E-_ZEFXA=1+H
EREA AEBAAAR —EZRERES
S F B #265,0008 T (ZF —NF - 4
29,157,000/ 7T) °

REZ - -_ZTFXA=tTHILEREAEX
N EMEEEIE A B8 A 43,332,000
BT (ZZ—NF 1 2,222,000/87T) °

Interim Report 2020 —E=-ZFHh K&

33



34

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CE-BEV SR

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue for the period under review decreased to
approximately HK$16.22 million from approximately HK$89.31
million for the six months ended 30 June 2019, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$73.09 million. The decrease in
revenue was mainly attributable to the temporary suspension
(the “Temporary Suspension”) of the operation of the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) and National
Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”), collectively with the Studio,
the “Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project”) since 24
January 2020 and 29 January 2020 respectively as a result
of the precautionary policies and measures implemented by
the Guangdong provincial government to deter the spread of
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic in the PRC. The
operation of the Studio and the Hotel was resumed from 16
May 2020.

Staff costs for the period under review decreased to
approximately HK$23.51 million from approximately HK$27.87
million for the six months ended 30 June 2019, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$4.36 million. Such decrease
was mainly due to the Temporary Suspension during the
period under review.

Finance costs for the period under review decreased
to approximately HK$84.81 million from approximately
HK$144.24 million for the six months ended 30 June 2019.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the maturity of
bonds. Interest expenses of approximately HK$76.75 million
included in the finance costs were accrued interest on bonds,
loan from shareholders and unsecured other borrowings,
which were settled by way of issuance of convertible bonds
and new shares of the Company on 29 June 2020 pursuant
to the Group’s restructuring transactions.

Other operating expenses for the period under review
decreased to approximately HK$34.02 million from
approximately HK$53.00 million for the six months ended 30
June 2019. Such decrease of approximately HK$18.98 million
was mainly due to the Temporary Suspension during the
period under review.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl &R %Xt &£@HER AT
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Impact on financial restructuring of approximately HK$854.26
million was recorded during the period under review. Such
impact arose from the difference between the carrying amount
of liabilities settled of approximately HK$2,082.42 million and
the fair value of the convertible bonds and the news shares of
the Company issued of approximately 1,228.16 million under
the Group’s restructuring transaction, details of which are set
out in the paragraphs headed “Restructuring Transaction”
and “Scheme of Arrangement” below. Nevertheless, the
impact was non-cash item and do have any real impacts on
the operations and cash flows of the Group during the period
under review.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group recorded
a net profit of approximately HK$689.82 million as compared
to a net loss of approximately HK$175.63 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2019. Such increase in the net profit
was mainly due to the impact on financial restructuring.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the Xigiao
Natural Arts Film Studio Project has the view of Mount Xigiao
which is known as one of the national 5-star tourist attractions
and has total developed land area of 444,000 square meters.
There are unique film shooting areas throughout the Studio
along with theme parks, hotel and performing arts complexes.
The Studio incorporates sightseeing and recreational facilities
which make it the most international vacation resort in
Guangdong Province. The Studio has opened a new theme
park named “The Snow Queen Theme Park”, and successfully
organised a number of events, including “# £ & [&
2 BB FHESE S, “The 6th Wing Chun Competition”,
“International Youth Film and Culture Internship Programme”
and “Christmas Carnival”. Overall, the total attendances of the
Studio in 2019 were approximately 1,200,000. In addition,
the Group also established the National Arts Brilliant Emperor
Cinematic Action Stunt Training Center (B Z#8 /2 & 52 8) {E4F
Rz 3lg ), which combines films, culture and tourism and
teaching activities, aiming to nurture the next generation of
movie stars. Meanwhile, the Group has participated in several
charity groups on education. The Studio cooperated with
charitable organisations such as Caritas and Po Leung Kuk to
organise study group events for students to participate and
to explore different culture and film production in the Studio.
The Groups believes that the events held by the Group will
effectively improve the brand awareness of the Studio and will
push the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project to the peak.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
& E Jﬁ AT Al & *ﬁ'

Travel

National Arts Travel Limited (“NA Travel”) has been
established and commenced its business since 2015.
It provides one-stop travel services especially for major
organizations, associations and tourists with “Diversification,
Professionalism, and Internationalism” as their principles,
and formulates flexible and comfortable travel plans and
personalized products. To enhance the comprehensive
customer support and increase the travel agency’s market
competitiveness, NA Travel has updated its inquiry and
sales system in 2018. In addition to optimizing traditional
group tours, travel insurance, international flight and hotel
booking, it also organises customized group tours, providing
extraordinary experience for travelers, including private tours,
business trainings and activities, honeymoon and wedding
plans, cruise vacations, professional and featured tours, etc.
In 2019, NA Travel initiated the “Charity Tours” ([ %2 2 jik |)
in Zhaoqing and Foshan for large organizations to support
corporate social responsibilities, and also arranged “Trip to
Resort of National Arts Studio” ([ Bl Z 248 k% E R & 2 ik )
for disabled group.

In addition, in order to diversify the current product lines, NA
Travel established “Skyyer Travel” in 2018 through the Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. “Skyyer Travel” presents
a fresh brand image with the slogan “What Travel means
is......you decide to go and take action! (JK#2 5t & ...... 18
P9 - mLP9)”. It specializes in designing “Tailor-made tours for
sport, hobby and industry” and invites various celebrities as
guests to create “Star-class Travel” which categorizes into
Sport-themed Travel (golfing, marathon, cycling, basketball,
table tennis, darts, kung fu, swimming, diving, dragon boat,
yoga, dancing), Art-themed Travel (painting, photography,
tea ceremony, music), Taste-themed Travel (food and wine
tasting), Religion-themed Travel (Christianity, Buddhism,
Taoism), etc., providing customers with unique experiences
of in-depth tours. In 2019. To make its products more
international and specialized, “Skyyer Travel” expanded
beyond Asia for the first time and entered regions in Europe
and the Middle East, including seeking the famous red
wine producing areas in Bordeaux, France, visiting luxury
and world-renowned buildings in Dubai and Abu Dhabi.
Meanwhile, “Skyyer Travel” organized “Theme Activity
Travel”, including international darts tournament, wing chun
tournament, hung kuen tournament, concert and beauty
contest, etc. In the third quarter of 2019, “Skyyer Travel” also
participated in a Sports Expo and held “Skyyer Travel Brand
and Outstanding Athlete Award Ceremony” for the first time in
order to achieve branding and marketing effects.
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In order to align with the current education blueprint of
“Broadening horizon and life-long learning”, NA Travel
established “National Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert (B
#3 (b3 2 E R)” through the Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong at the beginning of 2019, which specializes in
assisting primary and secondary schools, universities, social
groups and institutions to plan and organize different cultural
exchange and education activities with foreign counterparts.
Under the mission that “Study tours are provided to broaden
horizon, acquire knowledge, and have real experience” and
the philosophy of “exploring the world, making friends and
enriching life”, it provides professional itinerary advice and
considerate services, coupled with new elements, including
trainings for language, interests, history, arts, science and
technology, leadership and team building. Study tours cover
Foshan, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanxi in China, Taiwan,
Korea, Singapore, etc. The goal is to make sure that every
participant will have an unforgettable experience. In order to
align with the development of the Greater Bay Area, National
Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert organized a corporate
inspection delegation themed “Greater Bay Area Youth
Entrepreneurship Tour” spanning Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Foshan and Dongguan in late 2019, which broke with
traditional tourist routes for scenic spots, instead, it opened a
new era for entrepreneurs to study and exchange in famous
enterprises. In the coming future, National Arts Cultural Study
Tour Expert will set to input more resources to develop the
Greater Bay Area, so as to embrace new market trends.

Furthermore, at the end of 2019, NA Travel and National Arts
Cultural Study Tour Expert entered into a “Greater Bay Area
Strategic Cooperation Agreement” with a media organization,
aiming to implement a number of Greater Bay Area cultural
and business exchanges and inspection activities, and
assist industrial leaders and potential elites to have a deeper
understanding on the unique culture and local customs and
practices of the “9+2” cities in the Greater Bay Area, so
that they can be well prepared to cultural differences before
tapping into the Greater Bay Area market.

In order to give our customers a better understanding on the
products and policies of the travel agency, the Marketing
Department and the Tourism Department jointly launched
various travel publications, including: “Special Edition for
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (five
themes: Corporate Exchange, Volunteer Services, Team
Building, Experience Activities, Exploring the Ancients and
Seeking its Origin)”, “Guidebook for Skyyer Theme Travel
Collection”, “Study Tour Special Edition for National Arts
Cultural Study Tour Expert”, “Recommendation for Special
Package Tour of NA Travel”, etc.
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Currently, NA Travel has expanded its digital marketing
business in all directions. Particularly, NA Travel entered into
a “Platform Cooperation Agreement” with a travel platform
operated by a large Chinese-funded institution in early 2020.
In the future, NA Travel will also focus on tourism technology
to tap into their huge market potential.

NA Travel and “Skyyer Travel” are also committed themselves
to social responsibilities, including the 1st Hong Kong Youth
Festival — Sports Carnival and Record-setting Darts Event
(F—EEEEFH-RBERFEET AREKALK), and
Sowers Action — Boundless Teaching Charity Concert (&
TE-—EHEBEZS B LS, etc. In the future, they will
continue to actively participate in charitable activities and pay
back to society.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000 square
meters of land, including a lake of 120,000 square meters and
numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which are equipped
with excellent and comprehensive ancillary facilities in order
to provide the Southern China and foreign shooting crews the
most realistic and delicate scenes.

By virtue of the extensive choices of scenes, supreme
geographical location and multifunctional ancillary services,
the film shooting base has been heavily used by the
production crews. Since 2017, the Group has taken the role
of rental agent by entering into several rental agreements
with a number of companies renting film shooting equipment.
The partners provide the plentiful props, attires and high-
tech shooting equipment including lots of ancient costumes
of Ming and Qing dynasties, antique furniture, simulated
ordnance and other performing props. It generates substantial
revenue to the Group. Besides creating enormous synergistic
effect for the Group, it also enhances the Group’s capability
of provision of ancillary services in respect of film shooting,
and also facilitates centralization of the industry as well as
strengthen the Group’s competitiveness among its peers.
On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture, Publication,
Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”) approved a few
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company to assist the
Bureau in the operation and expansion (i) that would facilitate
film enterprises from various regions moving into Foshan,
policy presentation, solicitation of investment and funding
as well as shooting, etc.; (i) of digital studio and film location
construction projects; and (i) in respect of diversification of
props and equipment portfolio, leasing and consolidation of
props leasing business.
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With the rapid increase in the demand of film industry in recent
years, the Group is actively developing the second phase
development of the Studio (the “Second Phase Project”).
The Second Phase Project includes the building of indoor
studio, which could raise the Group’s current position in the
film industry and enable the Group to develop into a world-
known film shooting base in the foreseeable future.

The Group is the first enterprise designated by the Foshan
Government to help building Foshan as the largest hub for
props and equipment in Foshan, with focus on film and
television industry, which boosted the reputation of the Group
in the industry, thereby further consolidating the presence of
the Studio in the film and television industry in Southern China.

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned domestic
wedding photography chain group in the fourth quarter of
2013 to develop its new wedding photography business.
Through which, the Group leased the Studio with an area of
approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square meters) for a term
of 12 years and the wedding photography company invested
RMB10 million for the construction of scenic spots in different
styles such as European, Korean and Japanese styles
and guarantee there will be at least 28,800 couples taking
wedding photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual
income of this arrangement will be no less than approximately
RMB1.2 million starting from 2016.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jeweler,
Chinese and western bakery, Chinese style wedding gown
and wedding planning company in order to provide one-
stop service for wedding couples. The Studio is expected to
become a comprehensive wedding hot spot.

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel located next to the Studio provides 350
suites facilitated from deluxe suites to signature rooms. The
Hotel offers a wide range of dining choices and high-quality
food services, it has 6 specialties restaurants with Chinese
and foreign styles, offering high-class food and wine from
around the world. The Hotel is also equipped with a variety of
recreational facilities such as SPA, gym room and tea house,
allowing travelers to enjoy themselves within the Hotel in all
respects including dining, drinking and entertainment.
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Apart from the recreation, the Hotel also provides catering
services and commercial services such as business centre,
meeting rooms and lecture halls, thereby satisfy essential
needs and wants of the customers. To boost high quality
service, the Hotel wishes to build strong communication
among its staff by organising group activities such as sport
day, in order to educate the staff of the importance of team
work and to raise spirit in the corporate environment. Besides,
the Hotel was awarded “19th Golden Horse Award of China
Hotel — Best Theme Hotel Resort of Greater Bay Area” which
recognized the corporate management quality and service
quality of the Hotel.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio becoming
mature and its popularity having increased, the number of
tourists continuously grows. The Group expects to build
boutique hotel in the foreseeable future, offering customers
with more new experiences.

Film Production

The Group spared no effort in promoting entertainment
culture for many years such as production of and investment
in movie, microcinema and online TV programme to promote
the culture and the spirit of entertainment.

During 2016, the Group invested in the production of a charity
film named “Our Days in 6E” (F{"1&) 6E 3 ). The theme of “Our
Days in 6E” is in line with the current social status, laden with
educational significance as part of its social responsibility. In
2019, the Group has invested in the production of a modern
romantic film, named “Romantic Marriage?” (4§ i ) % % 7?).
The Group expects to invest more in production of films of
various themes, thus, stepping forward to the diversified film
market.

In addition, the Group held various courses from time to
time to cultivate next generation film producers and actors
in order to encourage the development of film production
and contribute to the betterment of the film industry. With
regard to the prospects of film production of the Group, the
Group will step forward in respect of Hong Kong-Mainland
film production and maintain a position in the film industry in
Southern China.
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Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a transportation
hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the PRC.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than 730
seats, and have commenced its operation since May 2014
which supports further comprehensive development of the
Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such as Rose
Chan and Brian Yuen, the Group has arranged a variety of
performance opportunities including the participation in the
charity movie, “Our Days in 6E” (F 11 & 6E ), the romantic
movie, “Romantic Marriage?” (#& i &) % & ?), the online TV
series “OCTB” (/% #&), brand representative, dramas such
as “Guardian Angel” (T # 19 2 R B2 ] &) and being the
show host of the Lunar New Year Celebration, and the guest
performers for the “New Year is A Game” (A It % It) and
“Cooking Beauties” (3 ZZ B 5= ).

Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists and makes arrangement for them to participate in live
reality show and online drama to enhance their popularity.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artists with potential in the future to cope
with the demands in the vast market and expand the artiste
management segment, hoping that it will become one of the
major income sources of the Group.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong Kong
dollars. During the six months ended 30 June 2019, most
of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. During
the period under review, since the Group had both Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi receipts and payments, the net
Renminbi exposure was not significant. The Board considers
that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk was not
significant, therefore, no hedging transaction was made during
the period.
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Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic to the Group

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the operation
of the Studio and the Hotel has been temporarily suspended
since 24 January 2020 and 29 January 2020 respectively. In
view of the relief of the epidemic in the PRC, the operation of
the Studio and the Hotel has resumed from 16 May 2020.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019, the Studio and
the Hotel contributed nearly 80% of the Group’s revenue by
means of hotel room income, food and beverage income
and entrance fee income. With the Temporary Suspension,
the Group’s revenue for the six months ended 30 June 2020
decreased drastically when compared to that for the six
months ended 30 June 2019.

Nevertheless, following the Temporary Suspension, the
direct costs of the Group were also reduced and the Group
has been operating at minimal costs so as to maintain its
necessary operation. As a result, the Group’s liquidity was
not severely worsened due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic during the six months ended 30 June 2020.

The principal business of the Group is in the entertainment
industry, which is an area severely affected by the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic. Shall the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic continue, the Group’s loss position as well as
liquidity may be worsened due to the loss of revenue from
the Studio and the Hotel. Despite the above, the financial
restructuring transaction and fund raising activity of the Group
mentioned in this report below shall be able to ease the
funding difficulties of the Group.

The Company will continuously assess and update its
shareholders and potential investors of material developments
in relation to COVID-19 pandemic.

Future Prospect

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 7
February 2020, the operation of the Studio and the Hotel
has been temporarily suspended since 24 January 2020
and 29 January 2020 respectively due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic. In view of the relief of the pandemic
in the PRC, the operation of the Studio and the Hotel has
resumed from 16 May 2020.
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Benefiting from the opportunities brought by the construction
of the “One Belt One Road Initiatives”, the development of
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, as well
as the opening of the Hong Kong section of the Guangzhou-
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, the China National Tourism
Administration is able to bring more convenience to overseas
visitors to pass through the Greater Bay Area, strengthen
market supervision, promote marketing and cooperation, and
support the industry to develop more “one travel with multi-
stops” tourism products. Hong Kong may become a “transit
station” to the Greater Bay Area, and travel agencies are
expected to design more intra-Bay tourism products, such
as Foshan Arts/Martial Arts/Film Tourism in response to the
development of the Greater Bay Area.

The gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province in the PRC
increased from RMB8.31 billion to RMB13.61 billion from
2013 to 2018, ranking among the leaders in China.

Overseas travelling by Hong Kong people (including through
airports and other departure ports) rose from 84.41 million
to 92.21 million between 2013 and 2018, representing an
increase of 9.2%.

With aging population, more senior people choose to travel
abroad after retirement. Travel agencies will design more
medium to short itineraries, and expand the cruise market to
provide a more diverse travel experience to cater the needs
of the senior people. As young people pay more attention
to tourism and cultural experience, in-depth travelling is
increasingly popular among them. Therefore, the travel
agencies will design tours with more characteristics, such as
boxing dance tourism, tea art tourism, yoga tourism, cycling
tourism, and Michelin cuisine tourism, in order to attract
young travelers.

The demand for business travel is increasing, and the opening
of the two major infrastructures, namely, the Hong Kong
section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail
Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, has greatly
enhanced the advantages of connection between Hong Kong
and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
Travel agencies are expected to expand tourism in related
fields, cooperate with the Group’s resort hotels and studios,
and launch corporate training and communication experiences
and theme activity tourism to meet the needs of the corporate
customers.
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WINDING UP PETITION AND
APPOINTMENT OF JOINT
PROVISIONAL LIQUIDATORS

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on 14 June
2019, a winding up petition together with the application for
the appointment of joint provisional liquidators (the “JPLSs”)
of the Company on a light touch approach for restructuring
purposes (the “JPL Application”) was presented and filed
with the Supreme Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Court”)
by the Company’s Bermuda Counsel at the request of the
Company.

The JPL Application was heard before the Bermuda Court
on the same date at 2:30 p.m. Bermuda time. The Bermuda
Court made the orders as sought by the Company under the
JPL Application, inter alia, the JPLs have been appointed with
immediate effect.

Pursuant to the order made by the Bermuda Court (the
“Bermuda Order”), the JPLs are granted a wide range of
powers, including but not limited to the powers to review the
financial position of the Company, to monitor, consult with,
oversee and otherwise liaise with the existing Board and the
creditors and shareholders of the Company in determining
the most appropriate manner of effecting a reorganisation
and/or refinancing of the Company, to seek assistance of
or recognition in any other courts as may be considered
appropriate, and to do all things necessary and incidental to
the exercise of the foregoing powers, etc.

By an order of the Honourable Mr. Justice Wilson Chan dated
15 August 2019, the appointment of the JPLs pursuant to
the order of the Bermuda Court dated 14 June 2019 was
recognized by the High Court of Hong Kong with the powers
conferred therein.
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RESTRUCTURING TRANSACTION

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 July
2019, on 10 July 2019, as part of the Company’s financial
restructuring plans, the Company invited all known creditors
of the Company (the “Creditors”) to make an offer to the
Company to subscribe for:

(1) 1% annual coupon rate convertible bonds to be issued
by the Company (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
principal amount equal to 60% of the outstanding
principal amount of debts due and owing by the
Company to each of the Creditors (where applicable,
together with interests accrued thereon and calculated
up to 14 June 2019 at the respective annual interest
rate of the relevant debt(s)) and convertible into fully-
paid ordinary shares of the Company listed and traded
on GEM at the initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per
conversion share (the “Conversion Shares”) (the “CB
Subscription”); and

(2)  new shares of the Company at the issue price of
HK$0.38 per share (the “New Shares”) the total
value of which equals to the remaining 40% of the
outstanding principal amount of debts due and owing
by the Company to each of the Creditors (where
applicable, together with interests accrued thereon
and calculated up to 14 June 2019 at the respective
annual interest rate of the relevant debt(s)) (the “Share
Subscription”)

(the CB Subscription and the Share Subscription together
referred to as the “Restructuring Transaction”), as full and
final settlement of all outstanding debts (where applicable,
together with interests accrued thereon and calculated up
to 14 June 2019 at the respective annual interest rate of the
debt(s)) due and owing by the Company to the Creditors,
subject to the execution, and the final terms and conditions,
of the subscription agreement, the bond instrument, any
scheme of arrangement proposed by the Company and/
or other agreements the execution of which is desirable for
the implementation and consummation of the Restructuring
Transaction, as the case maybe.

The offer by the Creditors to participate in the Restructuring
Transaction also includes an agreement that the Creditors
will participate in, support and vote in favour of a scheme(s)
of arrangement proposed by the Company, where such
scheme(s) is/are deemed necessary and appropriate by the
Company and the JPLs of the Company appointed pursuant
to the Bermuda Order dated 14 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHRR A

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12
August 2019, the Company has received substantial support
from its creditors regarding the Restructuring Transaction. In
this respect, the Company proposed to put forward a scheme
of arrangement pursuant to Section 99 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and Section 670 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong with substantially similar
terms under the Restructuring Transaction as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 July 2019, further
details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Scheme
of Arrangement” below.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

As announced on 19 August 2019, the Company proposed
to implement, subject to the approval by the Bermuda Court
and the Hong Kong Court, the scheme of arrangement (the
“Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the Company will issue the
New Shares and the Convertible Bonds to the creditors of the
Company (the “Creditors”) to discharge and release the debt
owing by the Company to the Creditors in full (the “Claims”).

Up to 14 June 2019 (the “Restructuring Order Date”),
based on the available books and records of the Company,
the estimated total amount of Claims against the Company
is approximately HK$2.13 billion. This figure is indicative
only and will be subject to final determination by the scheme
administrators and (if applicable) adjudication under the
Scheme.

On 4 October 2019, the Company obtained the directions of
the Bermuda Court and the Hong Kong Court in the hearing
before the Hong Kong Court and the Bermuda Court of the
applications for leave to convene the meeting of the Creditors
for the purpose of considering and approving, if thought fit,
the Scheme by the Creditors (the “Scheme Meeting”) on 8
November 2019. At such Scheme Meeting, the Scheme was
approved by the requisite statutory majorities of the Creditors.

On 10 October 2019, the Company convened the special
general meeting (“SGM”) to consider and approve, if thought
fit, the resolutions in relation to the Scheme, all of which were
duly passed by way of poll, including the specific mandate
granted to the Directors to allot and issue the New Issues
and Convertible Bonds and the increase the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$600,000,000 divided
into 6,000,000,000 Shares to HK$2,000,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 Shares by the creation of additional
14,000,000,000 new Shares. On 27 November 2019, the
Company obtained the conditional approval from the Stock
Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the New
Shares and Conversion Shares.
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With the applications to the Bermuda Court and Hong Kong
Court to sanction the Scheme subsequently, the Scheme was
sanctioned by the Bermuda Court and Hong Kong Court on
13 December 2019 and 6 January 2020 respectively. The
orders sanctioning the Scheme by the Bermuda Court and
the Hong Kong Court were respectively registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on 26 February 2020 and
Companies Registry in Hong Kong on 6 March 2020. As all
conditions precedent to the Scheme have been fulfilled on 6
March 2020, the Scheme became effective on 6 March 2020.

As announced in the Company’s announcement dated 20
March 2020, the Creditors were required to submit their
respective notices of Claims together with other documents or
other evidence necessary for substantiating their Claims to the
scheme administrators on or before 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday,
14 April 2020 (the “Cut-Off Date”). The notice to Creditors
of the Cut-Off Date was given to all Creditors by letter and by
advertisement published in “The Standard” (in English) and
“Sing Tao Daily” (in Chinese) circulated in Hong Kong, in “Ta
Kung Pao” (in Chinese) circulated in the PRC, and in “The
Royal Gazette” (in English) circulated in Bermuda on 20 March
2020.

Based on the final amounts of Claims of each Creditor, on
29 June 2020, 2,155,114,938 New Shares were allotted
and issued and Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,244,876,198 were issued to the Creditors.

Upon the issue of the New Shares and the Convertible Bonds,
all the Claims of the Creditors had been discharged and
extinguished and the Creditors will not be allowed to make
any claim against the Company in respect of their Claims.

Issue of New Shares and Convertible Bonds under Specific
Mandate

On 29 June 2020, completion of the Share Subscription and
the CB Subscription took place, under which the Company (i)
allotted and issued, in aggregate, 2,115,114,938 New Shares
at the issue price of HK$0.38 per New Share for settlement of
40% of the Claims held by the Creditors against the Company
as at the Restructuring Order Date which have been admitted
by the scheme administrators (the “Admitted Claims”) of
the Creditors; and (ii) issued the Convertible Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,244,876,198.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHRR A

Details of the Share Subscription

The New Shares allotted have an aggregate nominal value
of HK$211,511,493.8. The issue price of HK$0.38 per New
Share represents a premium of approximately 84.47% over
the closing price of HK$0.206 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 19 August 2019. The New Shares are
subject to a lock-up period of 12 months from the date of
completion of the Share Subscription.

Details of the CB Subscription

The value of the Convertible Bonds issued to the Creditors
was approximately HK$1,244,876,198, being the sum of (i)
up to approximately HK$1,228,415,625 for the aggregation
of 60% of the Claims of the Creditors and (i) HK$16,460,573
for the consent bonus (the “Consent Bonus”) (being an
extra one (1) per cent of the outstanding principal amount
of an eligible Creditor’s debt (where applicable, together
with interests accrued thereon and calculated up to the
Restructuring Order Date at the respective annual interest
rate of the relevant debt(s)) to be awarded to the eligible
Creditors in accordance with the terms of the Scheme).
Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion rights (the
“Conversion Rights”) attached to the Convertible Bonds at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per Conversion Share,
an aggregate of 2,263,411,269 Shares (with an aggregate
nominal value of HK$226,341,126.9) will be issued. The
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds falls on the day being
the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds (“Maturity Date”). Subject to the terms and conditions
of the Convertible Bonds, the conversion price will initially be
HK$0.55 per share, but subject to customary adjustments
including but not limited to (i) consolidation or subdivision; (ii)
rights issue of shares or rights to acquire shares; (iii) issues of
convertible securities; (iv) modification of rights of conversion;
(v) other offers to shareholders; and (vi) other events. The
initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per Conversion Shares
represents a premium of approximately 166.99% over the
closing price of HK$0.206 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 19 August 2019.
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The Convertible Bonds bear interest at 1% annual coupon
rate payable annually from the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds. The conversion period of the Convertible Bonds is
from 29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 during which period
the holders of the Convertible Bonds can convert the
Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company, provided
that no holder of the Convertible Bonds shall exercise any
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds to the
extent that immediately after such conversion (i) the holder of
the Convertible Bonds together with parties acting in concert
with it, taken together, will, directly or indirectly, control or
be interested in 30% or more of the voting rights of the
Company (or such percentage as may from time to time be
specified in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
as being the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) or
otherwise being obliged to make a general offer for Shares in
accordance with the requirement of the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers or (i) there will not be sufficient public
float of the Shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company will redeem all of the Convertible
Bonds on the Maturity Date at such amount equivalent to
the principal amount of the outstanding Convertible Bonds
(inclusive of interests received up to the Maturity Date).

Dilutive impact of the conversion of the Convertible Bonds

Assuming that there is no change in share capital of the
Company since the date of this report and the Conversion
Rights are exercised in full at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.55, the number of issued shares of the Company will
be increased by 2,263,411,269, representing 30.78% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report (i.e. 7,353,285,390 Shares) and approximately 23.54%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares. Such
allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares will result in the
respective shareholdings of the shareholders being diluted by
approximately 23.54%.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR R E i

RBREHFETRRESBEITAHRBIE1%9NFERE
BRHAE BEBEIN—XAE - JRBRESFNE
BHER T =FAAZTNAREZZT_RHF
ANAZTHNBLE - BB JREESFNEEA
AR REESREBRARNRARRG - AR &R
BRIREFHIFE ABREITE AR E 5 BT I 8 ) 2
fRigfe () rTREFFBAERE —BITBALH
HESEEE S E AR AT ER30% A £
Mz (BB 78 U S B OF B <7 BI 7B 5 PR 4B B o8 1
2ERBEZEEE S L) RIEE S RE XHEST
BIRR TE 2 L Ath 75 = 78 3 17 5 11 2 T R ok (i) AR 19
ZABRBEBENGEM LR 2 B%k -

BRIFEREAMER Ei BENKEH A2AHK
RERBBRRAERHRENTRRESASELZ
SHEBOMBARRES  BRAZERA R
HZHE -

BRTRREFNBERE

BEARAIRAEANRE BRI &AM
BB ERy S E R E0558 mERHTE |
RAFBBEITRMEE KIS HN2,263,411,269 J%
EARRRIAARE AHE HTRAT30.78% (B
7,353,285,390 i& % 17) J AN A R4S B % R B 1784 i
[ (R R 1B B BT AN 49 23.54% - B8 2 351788
AR B S BUR R & B W RS 4923.54% ©

Interim Report 2020 —Z - ZFHhHHE

49



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHRR A

Assuming that save for the exercise of the Conversion Rights
in full in relation to the respective Convertible Bonds issued
to the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company, there is no other change in the
shareholding of the substantial shareholders of the Company
since 30 June 2020, the shareholding of the substantial

BREZETTARRIZRR(EER EWRADK
HE MR ES R ERRTEI - AREE
ERROBEE —E-_TFEA=THELELMD
B RERHHA ARAREIERRN_-_Z_ZTF
NA=ZTERRBBREEITEA R R R EET
BRI BEFHSIAT -

shareholders of the Company as at 30 June 2020 immediately
before and after the exercise of the Conversion Rights is set
out below for illustration purposes:

Shareholding immediately Shareholding immediately

before the exercise of the after the exercise of the
Conversion Rights Conversion Rights

FERRERTEANRE EREARERTEANRE
Approximate Approximate
Number of  percentage of Number of  percentage of
Name of Shareholder Shares held  shareholding Shares held  shareholding
ERE 221 ERER
RRHH HERGEE BREDH R EE HNEA
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (‘Mr. Sin") (Note) KB ((REED (W) 1,584,147,29 22.30%  2,334,562,575 24.92%
Ms. Law Po Yee (‘Ms. Law’) (Note) BERLL (B (W) 158414729 22.30%  2,334,562,575 24.92%

50

Note: Mr. Sin and Ms. Law beneficially owned 1,529,983,985 Shares
and 54,163,311 Shares respectively. Mr. Sin and Ms. Law are
spouses and thus Mr. Sin and Ms. Law were deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which their spouse was interested
by virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Diluted loss per share for the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020 was the
same as basic loss per share as the impact of the exercise of
the Convertible Bonds is anti-dilutive.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had total net assets of
approximately HK$652,426,000. Based on the financial and
liquidity positions of the Group and to the best knowledge and
belief of the Company, the Company expects that it will be
able to meet its redemption obligations under the Convertible
Bonds.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

Wit - EEERBEZ TSR E =S 1,529,983,985 & A% 17
554,163,311 &g 0 c Sk E R E L T RIS -
PR IEE S R B EEH R E RBELZLTHE AR
HERBEEESNMBERMD TP ER#EE -

HRITEARRESEELEREBEZE  WARF
BEARBEZE T _ZFRA=TRHILRXEREL
ERENSREEERESREAERMAR -

R-ZZE_TEXNAZ+H AEBMFEELEYD
652,426,000 87T < IR AEE 2 B RIREIE k00
INEBARTRARERE  AREIBHEEENE
TAIMBREHRBE T 2 EBREMT -



An analysis of the Company’s share price at which it would
be equally financially advantageous for the holders of the
Convertible Bonds to convert or redeem the Convertible
Bonds based on their implied internal rate of return (and
therefore the holders of the Convertible Bonds would be
indifferent as to whether the Convertible Bonds are converted
or redeemed) at a range of dates in the future is set out below:
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Share price
RE
HK$
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31 December 2020 —ZE==

F+-A=+—8H 0.58 per Share

G 0.58

29 June 2025 (i.e. the maturity date of the —ZE-RFXA=-1+ANAH 0.55 per Share
Convertible Bonds) (BNeJ AR fE 5 8 E) R 0.55

The New Shares were and the Conversion Shares will be
allotted and issued under the specific mandate sought from
the Shareholders (other than Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow Kai
Weng (“Mr. Chow”), Mr. Tse Young Lai (“Mr. Tse”) and Mr.
Yiu Kin Kong and any Shareholder with a material interest in
the Scheme) at the SGM held on 10 October 2019.

The Company obtained the conditional approval from the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the New Shares and the Conversion Shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHRR A

Connected Transactions in relation to the Issue of New
Shares and Convertible Bonds

Among all Creditors, Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse
have loaned to the Company.

Mr. Sin is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board,
a member of the nomination committee of the Board and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Ms. Law, being the
spouse of Mr. Sin, is an associate of Mr. Sin. Immediately
before the issue of the New Shares and the Convertible
Bonds, Mr. Sin, together with his associate, Ms. Law, was
interested in 871,932,623 Shares, representing approximately
17.62% of the total issued share capital of the Company
immediately before the issue of the New Shares and the
Convertible Bonds.

Mr. Chow is an executive Director, the associate chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company.
Immediately before the issue of the New Shares and the
Convertible Bonds, Mr. Chow was interested in 1,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 0.02% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately before the issue of
the New Shares and the Convertible Bonds.

Mr. Tse is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Immediately before the issue of the New Shares and the
Convertible Bonds, Mr. Tse was interested in 563,547,600
Shares, representing approximately 11.39% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately before the issue of
the New Shares and the Convertible Bonds.

Up to the Restructuring Order Date, the total amounts
respectively due to Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse
(including the interests accrued thereon and calculated up to
the Restructuring Order Date at the respective interest rate of
the relevant Claim(s)) are illustrated as follows:
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HK$
BT
Mr. Sin AR E 647,333,195
Ms. Law Eit 29,270,746
Mr. Chow Bt 36,341,433
Mr. Tse HAEE 1,892,584

714,837,958
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Under the Scheme, Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr.
Tse shall have the same entitlement as the other Creditors.
Pursuant to the terms of Scheme and based on the available
books and records of the Company, the entitlement of Mr.
Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse under the Scheme

respectively are as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR R E i

REBEZTE - AkLE Bt AERERH LR
HipERAZFAEERER - RIBEZ B GERRER
ARRAHEMMERE Motk FkE BT
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Mr. Sin Ms. Law Mr. Chow Mr. Tse
REE But A% HEE
Share Subscription
RO R
Value of New Shares issued HK$258,933,278 HK$11,708,299 HK$14,536,573 HK$757,033
BETNHRNEE 258,933,278 7 1T 11,708,299 7% 7T 14,536,573/ T 757,033 T
Issue price HK$0.38 HK$0.38 HK$0.38 HK$0.38
#17E 0.388 T 0.38/TT 0.38/ T 0.38% 7T
Number of New Shares issued 681,403,362 30,811,311 38,254,139 1,992,193
New Shares New Shares New Shares New Shares
BETNOFHRINEE 681,403,362 30,811,311 38,254,139 1,992,193
BT AR 19 it e BT AR 17 BT AR 19
CB Subscription
ARRESRE
Principal amount (including Consent Bonus) HK$394,873,249 HK$17,855,155 HK$22,168,274 HK$1,154,476
A (BERBEL) 394,873,249 1T 17,855,155 % 7T 22,168,274 75 1L 1,154,476 T
Maximum Conversion Shares upon full conversion 717,951,361 32,463,918 40,305,952 2,099,047

FRERNRBARN

All of Claims of Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse have
been discharged pursuant to the Scheme and the treatment
to be received by them under the Scheme is the same as

those to other Creditors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHRR A

Issue of Shares under Specific Mandate in relation to
Advisory Service of Financial Adviser

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26
August 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 20
September 2019, the Company has appointed Oriental
Patron Asia Limited (“OPAL”), a licensed corporation to carry
out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO, as the financial adviser to the Company (the
“Appointment of Financial Adviser”) to advise on and
assist in formulating and overseeing a potential financial
restructuring as to improving the Company’s financial position.
Regarding the payment of advisory fee (the “Advisory Fee”),
after arm’s length negotiations, OPAL agreed to receive the
newly issued shares of the Company to settle the Advisory
Fee. On 26 August 2019, the supplemental mandate letter
(as to supplement the original mandate letter signed in May
2019) has been entered into between the Company and
OPAL, pursuant to which the Advisory Fee was agreed to
be paid by the Company to OPAL in the form of issuing and
allotting 250,000,000 newly issued and fully paid-up Shares
(the “OPAL Fee Shares”) which is subject to subject to a
lock-up period of 12 months from the date of the issuance
and such OPAL Fee Shares were issued and allotted to OPAL
simultaneously with the New Shares issued to the Creditors
under the Scheme on 29 June 2020. The 250,000,000 OPAL
Fee Shares were allotted and issued to OPAL on 3 August
2020.

The Company obtained the conditional approval from the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the OPAL Fee Shares. The Directors obtained the specific
mandate granted to allot and issue the OPAL Fee Shares at
the SGM held on 10 October 2019.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 August 2019, 8 October 2019, 14
October 2019, 8 November 2019, 19 November 2019, 27
November 2019, 15 December 2019, 7 January 2020, 25
February 2020, 6 March 2020, 20 March 2020, the circular
of the Company dated 20 September 2019 and the next day
disclosure return of the Company dated 30 June 2020 and 3
August 2020.
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PROPOSED GRANT OF SHARE
SUBSCRIPTION FACILITY TO
THE COMPANY AND PROPOSED
ISSUE OF NEW SHARES AND
WARRANTS UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

On 13 March 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “SSF Agreement”) with, among others, GEM
Global Yield LLC SCS (the “Investor”) (as amended and
supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated 27 July
2020), pursuant to which

(1) The Investor has agreed to grant the Company, the
share subscription facility (the “Share Subscription
Facility”) and an option (the “Option”) to require the
Investor to subscribe for Shares (the “Option Shares”)
of up to HK$2,350,000,000 (the “Total Commitment”)
in value at the Subscription Price (as defined below)
during the period commencing on the date of the SSF
Agreement and expiring on the earlier of: (a) the third
anniversary of the date of the SSF Agreement (the
“Commitment Period”); and (b) the date on which the
Investor has subscribed for shares in the Company with
an aggregate subscription price of HK$2,350,000,000
(excluding shares to be issued upon exercise of the
Warrants (as defined below) pursuant to the SSF
Agreement; and

(2)  the Company has agreed to issue to the Investor the
warrants (the “Warrants”) to subscribe for Shares (the
“Warrant Shares”) by the Investor Agreement which
entitle the Investor to purchase up to 383,000,000
Shares at Warrant Exercise Price (as defined below)
during the Warrant Exercise Period (as defined below).

It is also provided in the SSF Agreement (as supplemented
and amended) that:

(1)  the maximum shareholding of the Investor (or its
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)) in
the Company shall in any event be less than 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company such that the
Investor will not become a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and a connected
person (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules);
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(2)  in the event that the Determined Price (as defined
below) is higher than the Floor Price (as defined below)
and the Minimum Threshold Price (as defined below),
the Investor shall be obliged to subscribe for a number
of Shares which is not less than 50% and not more
than 200% of the Pricing Period Obligation (as defined
in the SSF Agreement) at the Determined Price; and

(8) in the event that the Determined Price is lower than the
Floor Price or the Minimum Threshold Price, no Option
Shares will be issued to the Investor by the Company.

Warrant Exercise Period shall mean the period commencing
from the date on which the conditions precedent to the SSF
Agreement are fulfiled (the “Warrant Delivery Date”) to the
third (3rd) anniversary of the Warrant Delivery Date or, if such
day is not a business Day, the immediately following business
day.

Warrant Exercise Price shall mean the subscription price
of each Warrant Share, initially being HK$0.23 per Warrant
Share (subject to adjustment) or if on the first anniversary of
the Warrant Delivery Date, the market price of a Share is less
than a sum equal to 90 per cent. of the Warrant Exercise
Price on such date, the relevant Warrant Exercise Price shall
be a sum equal to 105 per cent. of such market price.

Subscription Price shall mean the higher of (i) the Determined
Price; (i) the Floor Price; and (iii) the Minimum Threshold Price.

Determined Price shall mean 90% of the average of the
closing bid prices during the pricing period, ignoring for the
purposes of such calculation any Knockout Day.

Floor Price shall mean the price fixed at a discount of 20%
to the benchmarked price (as referred and defined in Rule
17.42B of the GEM Listing Rules) of the Share.

Minimum Threshold Price shall mean HK$0.19 per Share
(subject to adjustment in case of subdivision or combination
of Shares).

Knockout Day shall mean any trading day during a pricing
period: (a) on which the Shares are not traded on GEM or
trading of the Shares thereon is suspended for more than
one hour; or (b) in respect of which the Investor has made an
election to treat such trading day as a Knockout Day.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

@0 WETER(EEETX)ERTRER(EE
BT RERPFEER (FER T - Al
BEBETRETEERAE —THENRKRD -
BABRMBETSEREEHET (EER
SSF %) #150% B 5B 200% & &

@ HEEERER TREBMKFKEFIEERS -
AIRRR BTG RIREE BITHEBERD

TR HERE 1T HI4E B SSF 3 3 1Y SR R EE R 2
B(RRERRXNBH]) EERBEEIN BT
=ZQ@EBEF WM EMAHLIEEXR  BIRER
HigmEe % B ILHIRE -

REERTEERESRRBREERDOREE - )
FRERBMEER A 0.23/8 7T (7] FE) shmn
REEEXNARE—FBFER  —BBRHO™
BIER % AR FETEERI90% - AIAARE R A
BITEERAEHTEN105% °

RBEEE()ETES (i) TRES K i)&EF
BEEE(URSERE) -

B 18 1 A PO T4 T A 2 90% + 3%
SHEERL ME RAEAAOK A -

TREBEEZKROHEEE (WGEM EMHAIE
17 42BFTIRIL R 8 ) TiE 20% EE & 2 (B 15 ©

REFIEERERSRRMN019B T (EERH DI
HA G THRE)

BUEAREEBHAERNRZRSA  @BRORZBET
RGEMEE S HKRNBEEL (FHEE — @/ =X
LZAREEERESAEBUIZ BHREDUER -

o



Option Shares and Warrant Shares

Assuming that the Option Shares will be issued at the closing
price of the share as at the date of the SSF Agreement
of HK$0.185 per Option Share and based on the total
commitment of HK$2,350 million, a total of 10,217,391,304
Option Shares will be allotted and issued upon the full
exercise of the Option, representing approximately 206.49%
of the existing issued Shares of 4,948,170,452 as at the date
of the SSF Agreement or 67.37% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
such 10,217,391,304 Option Shares.

The 383,000,000 Warrant Shares represent approximately
7.74% of the existing issued Shares as at the date of the SSF
Agreement or approximately 7.18% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
such 383,000,000 Warrant Shares.

The Warrant Shares would be issue under specific mandate
to be sought at special general meeting of the Company to
be convened for the Shareholders to consider and approve
the SSF Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the issue of the Warrant Shares.

The Company proposes to utilise the general mandate
granted pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
29 June 2019 (or any other general mandates to allot and
issue Shares approved by the Shareholders on a later date,
collectively, the “General Mandate”) to the Directors to allot,
issue and otherwise deal with new Shares not exceeding 20%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing such resolution to
allot and issue the Option Shares which may be issued under
the SSF Agreement.

If the existing General Mandate is fully utilised or is about
to fully utilised or the General Mandate is insufficient for the
allotment and issuance of the Option Shares which may be
issued in the next tranche(s) of subscription of the Option
Shares, the Company will convene a special general meeting
of the Company to obtain the Shareholders’ approval to
refresh the General Mandate for the subsequent issuance of
the remaining Option Shares. If the refreshment of the existing
General Mandate is made pursuant to Rule 17.42A(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules, a circular will be issued and the Company
will seek approval of the refreshment of the General Mandate
by the independent shareholders by way of an ordinary
resolution at the special general meeting. The refreshment
of general mandate of the Company is expected to continue
until the Share Subscription Facility of HK$2,350 million is fully
utilised.
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Reason for entering into the SSF Agreement

The Board is of the view that issue of the Option Shares
and the Warrant Shares offers a good opportunity to raise
additional capital for the Company and to strengthen the
financial position of the Company. Given that the Company
shall have the right but not an obligation to deliver notice to
the Investor to subscribe for the Option Shares during the
Commitment Period and exercise the Option at its discretion,
the Directors consider that the Group will have flexibility in
raising funds by exercising the Option during the Commitment
Period. The arrangement under the SSF Agreement effectively
gives the Group access to a readily available source of
financing and the right to raise funds by the delivery of at
any time during the Commitment Period when the Board
considers such delivery is favourable to the Company. By
comparison, the Board considers that with current sluggish
market sentiment and recent interest rate hike, the Company
would be difficult to secure any debt financing of comparable
size from banks or financial institutions. The Board is further of
the view that the high gearing ratio of the Group would result
in the Group having less favourable financing terms offered by
banks and other financial institutions.

The Company has been exploring opportunities to diversify
into new businesses to mitigate the risks of being in the lines
of business in film and hotel industries and to deliver long-
term and stable cash flow and creating favourable investment
returns for the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Directors consider that the SSF Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole,
and the terms of the SSF Agreement, among others, the
mechanism to fix the Minimum Threshold Price and the
Warrant Exercise Price, are fair and reasonable.

For each tranche of the subscription of the Option Shares,
the Company will issue an announcement setting out the
Subscription Price, the number of Option Shares to be
subscribed by the Investor, the intended use of proceeds,
the aggregate issued Shares and the balance of the General
Mandate (as defined below) to keep the Shareholders and the
potential investors informed.
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Proposed use of net proceeds of the Option Shares and the
Warrant Shares

Assuming the Total Commitment is received in full from
issuance of the Option Shares, the gross proceeds (before
expenses) and the estimated net proceeds will be HK$2,350
million and HK$2,278.5 million respectively.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the
issuance of Option Shares as follows:

(8  up to HK$250 million for repayment of the liabilities
of the Group, including borrowings of HK$64 million,
trade payables of HK$36 million and other payables of
HK$150 million;

(o)  up to HK$200 million for general working capital of the
Group, including restructuring cost of HK$60 million,
salaries of HK$50 million, repair and maintenance of
HK$35 million, purchase of hotel materials of HK$20
million, rental of HK$10 million and other expenses of
HK$25 million;

() up to HK$328.5 million for expansion and upgrading of
the Studio and the Hotel; and

(d)  up to HK$1,500 million for investment in potential
projects, including but not limited to virtual banking
business, online e-commerce business and consumer
finance business.

Assuming full issuance of the Warrant Shares, the estimated
net proceeds will be approximately HK$88.09 million, which is
intended to be applied for utilised for general working capital
of the Group and expansion and upgrading of the Studio and
the Hotel.

Details of the SSF Agreement, the issue of the Option
Shares and the Warrants are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 March 2020 and 27 July 2020.
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PROPOSED CHANGE OF
COMPANY NAME

The Board proposes to change the name of the Company
from “National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited”
to “National Arts Group Holdings Limited” and adopt the
Chinese name “BI 2 £ B Z IR R 2~ 7]” as its official
Chinese name (“Change of Company Name”). The Board
will propose special resolution at the forthcoming SGM for
considering, and if thought fit, approving the Change of
Company. The reason for changing the Company’s name
is precisely to reflect the direction of the diversification
of business in order to reduce the risk of single business
segments. The Board believes that the proposed new English
and Chinese names of the Company will provide the Company
with better identification of the principal business of the
Group. As such, the Board is of the view that the proposed
Change of Company Name is in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. The proposed Change of
Company Name is subject to the following conditions: (i) the
passing of the special resolution by the Shareholders at the
SGM approving the Change of Company Name; and (i) the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda approving the Change of
Company Name and entering the proposed new English and
Chinese name of the Company into the register of companies.

A circular containing details of the proposed Change
of Company Name and a notice of SGM among other
information as required under the GEM Listing Rules will be
despatched to the Shareholders as soon as practicable in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

Further details of the proposed Change of Company Name
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 March
2020.

POSSIBLE OFFER FOR CONVOY
GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26
March 2020, the Board is discussing with certain shareholders
of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019)
(“Convoy”) in relation to a possible acquisition of the issued
shares of Convoy (the “Convoy Shares”) by the Company in
the consideration of the Company’s new shares (the “Possible
Share Exchange Transaction”). The Possible Share
Exchange Transaction did not proceed further.
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Possible Offer

On 22 June 2020, the Board approached the board of
directors of Convoy (the “Convoy Board”) about a conditional
voluntary share exchange offer by the Company to acquire all
of the issued shares in the share capital of Convoy, subject to
fulfilment of certain conditions (the “Possible Offer”).

Following the approach, the Board is now discussing with the
Convoy Board further details of the Possible Offer, including
how and when the Possible Offer can be made, bearing
in mind the financial and other information which would
be required to be included in documentation to be sent to
shareholders of the Company and Convoy in relation to the
Possible Offer.

Based on the latest published audited accounts of Convoy
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
expects that the Possible Offer, if it were to proceed, would
constitute either a major transaction or a very substantial
acquisition for the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules. This would involve consent from shareholders
of the Company and require publication of extensive financial
information about Convoy and its subsidiaries which is not
currently available.

Based on the information currently available, the Stock
Exchange has formed the preliminarily view that the Possible
Offer, if proceeds, may constitute a reverse takeover of
the Company under GEM Listing Rule 19.06B. The Board
does not hold the same view as the Stock Exchange and is
currently addressing the concern of the Stock Exchange.

The Company and Convoy will publish further
announcement(s) regarding the Possible Offer and the
transactions contemplated thereunder in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers
Code”) as and when appropriate.

For the purposes of the Takeovers Code, the offer period has
commenced on 29 July 2020.
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Shares of the Company to be issued to its financial adviser

The Company has appointed Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited (“Yu Ming”), a licensed corporation
to carry out types 1 (dealing in securities), 4 (advising on
securities), 6 (advising on corporate finance) and 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), as financial adviser to
advise the Company on the Possible Offer and transactions
contemplated thereunder. Yu Ming is wholly-owned by Da
Yu Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1073). Based on
the best knowledge and belief of Yu Ming and the Company,
Yu Ming’s ultimate substantial shareholders are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons. As
at the date of this report, Yu Ming is not interested in any of
the Company’s shares or Convoy Shares. To preserve cash
resources of the Company, the Company proposed to pay
Yu Ming its financial advisory fees for the Possible Offer by
way of issuing new shares of the Company (the “Yu Ming
Fee Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.185, equivalent to
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the last trading
date prior to suspension of trading on 23 June 2020. A total
of 54,054,054 Yu Ming Fee Shares will be issued to Yu Ming,
which amount to HK$10,000,000.

The number of Yu Ming Fee Shares to be issued to Yu Ming
is fixed and is not subject to any further changes. Yu Ming’s
advisory fee is non-refundable and not contingent upon the
status or development of the Possible Offer and transactions
contemplated thereunder. The Yu Ming Fee Shares will rank
pari passu in all respects with the Company’s shares in issue
as at the date of issuance. The Yu Ming Fee Shares are
intended to be allotted and issued under the general mandate
granted to Board on 28 June 2019. An application has been
made to the Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the Yu Ming Fee Shares.

Details of the Possible Offer are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 29 July 2020 and 30 July 2020.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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At 30 June At 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZB-2F RZE—NF
~B=+H +=—A=+—8”

Current assets mEBNEE
Current liabilities mBAE
Current ratio VLIRS

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (fe&=%)
172,098 130,713
381,810 1,946,600
45.1% 6.7%

Current ratio as at 30 June 2020 was approximately 45.1%
(31 December 2019: approximately 6.7%). As at 30 June
2019, the Group’s total positive cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$1.51 million (31 December
2019: negative cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$2.11 million).

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).

AECTFRAZTENRBLELNRA51% (=
T—NFE+-_A=+—B #H67%) R-_ZT-F
FRAZTRE AEEHKFIBARERAEE
BHEHN1S1EEBT(ZE—NAF+ZA=+—8:
BHRESMREFERAN2AERET) °

RE

EETEARNBE_Z-_TFRA=THILRE
ABPRHERE (ZE—NF : |\) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHRR A

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 17
October 2002. The capital of the Company comprises only
ordinary shares. As at 30 June 2020, 7,1083,285,390 ordinary
shares were issued and fully paid.

EXRBRARLE

ARl —EZEZ_F+A++tHEGEM £ °
AREIBRAEBELEBER R_TE_FTF A=
H757,103,285,300 B 317 R B IR @AY o

At 30 June 2020 At 31 December 2019
R-E_ZFXB=1H RZE-NF+-A=+—H
Amount Relative % Amount Relative %
kx| HE % 58 HE %
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Loans from shareholders REBREMHER 1,753 0.1% 589,457 34.9%
Bank overdraft RITEX - 0% 5,778 0.3%
Borrowings f&E 147,589 8.7% 227,040 13.4%
Bonds &% - 0% 1,153,283 68.3%
Promissory notes A EE 47,000 2.8% 115,197 6.8%
Convertible bonds ARES 826,027 48.3% - 0%
Finance lease obligation 5 30,592 1.8% 29,763 1.8%
Total borrowings BEBE 1,052,961 61.7% 2,120,518 125.5%
Equity g 652,426 38.3% (431,283) (25.5%)
Total capital employed FERNELRBE 1,705,387 100% 1,689,235 100%
The Group’s gearing ratio (note) was approximately 61.7% as RZE_EFXA=ZTH AEENHEELR (W

at 30 June 2020 (31 December 2019: approximately 125.5%).
If the bonds, promissory notes, convertible bonds and finance
lease obligation as stated above were to be excluded, the
underlying gearing ratio would be 8.8% (31 December 2019:
48.6%). The increase in the gearing ratio in the current period
was due to increased loans from third parties and bonds
during the period.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated by total borrowings over total capital
employed.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong Kong
dollars. During the six months ended 30 June 2020, most
of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. During
the period under review, since the Group had both Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi receipts and payments, the net
Renminbi exposure was not significant. The Board considers
that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk was not
significant; therefore, no hedging transaction was made during
the period under review.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

) #9561, 7%(— —hFE+-A=+—H: 494
125.5%)  AMibk LM ESH & EE - ATRR
EHFERMBEHERE BEAaBEL XK AE88% (=
T—NF+-A=1+—H:486%) - ~EHEEL
EEATHRBREFTEE=FERRES -
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Commitments

Details of the Group’s commitments are set out in note 20 of
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme Park
Management Company Limited (1 111 77 Bl £ 2 [& & 12 B R
‘A 8]) (‘Guohao Theme Park”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has entered into a subscription agreement with
Guangdong Hongtu Guangdian Investment Co., Ltd. (& &
BLBEEREEFRATF) (“GD Hongtu”), pursuant to which
GD Hongtu will make a capital injection of RMB20 million into
the Guohao Theme Park, in respect of joint cooperation of the
Second Phase Project. The Second Phase Project involves
building a total of 6 indoor studios and 2 boutique hotels next
to the first phase of the Studio and the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any plan for
substantial investments or capital assets.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than the disclosure under “Capital Commitments” in
note 20 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any other material contingent liabilities
as at 30 June 2020.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest, whether directly or indirectly, in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group
or had any conflict of interest with the Group during the six
months ended 30 June 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices and procedures with an aim of
maximizing the shareholders’ interests as well as to enhancing
the stakeholders’ transparency and accountability. In this
respect, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Company
has complied with all of the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules then in force during the six months ended
30 June 2020.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR R E i

A

AEBEHAEFBHAN GV BRIM T M
20 °

ARERREFEFHEEE
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Mg B

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company (“Shares”)

B M ERTBEANBR R - A
I3 Jie oy J A6 7 2 M i e W A

RZBE_ZFEXNA=1TH BF AQATFETH
AERBESH ZHE ARARRQ R S H T HE
E(EEREFNPEKRN ((BFRBEHKG]) F
XVER) Zf% 5 - AR R ESEEZREBEESFK
HEROEXNTFZTRESH B2 B TETAMNE AR
AIRBRFTzEG AR (BE LA LTREZS
BH M EEGINE W & ESUE B A 2 i m ROk
B RIREESFLRBEIEIEI2EZ R TEAES
KAt 2 Bz #Em kAR BEGEM £
RAE546 1625672 RTEAMEAA T MR
Bz RS BoR AT

1. ﬁfﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁojﬁﬁzgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁz
B

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held of the Company
HARATE BT
EEHR B, Rty FEROGHEE BREAZHAEIL
(Note 1)
(Ki7t1)
Mr. Sin Beneficial owner 1,529,983,985 21.54%
B E=BE A
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 54,163,311 0.76%
BB (et 2)
Mr. Chow Beneficial Owner 39,254,139 0.55%
BEAE EmEAA
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.04%
BCEE E=BEA
Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.06%
£t EmEAA
Notes: Kiat -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 30 June 1. WHERZZTZEF A= TH2HEET

2020 (i.e. 7,103,285,390 shares).

2. Ms. Law was beneficially interested in 54,103,311
Shares. By virtue of SFO, Mr. Sin, the spouse of Ms.
Law, was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Ms. Law was interested.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

A% 5 (EN7,103,285,390 %) °
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Long positions in the underlying Shares REBERR2HE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Company
LER VN
BRTREZ
EEHA 513 Rt FEROEE BMABEDL
(Note 1)
(Mtat1)
Mr. Sin Beneficial owner 717,951,361 10.11%
I ERmBAA (Note 3) (/f173)
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 32,463,918 0.46%
fl B (Wit 2)
Mr. Chow Beneficial Owner 40,389,647 0.57%
AsE EREAA (Note 4) (K15t 4)
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 33,604 0.0005%
oyt EmBEAA (Note 5) (/17 5)
Notes: Vot

This is based on the total issued Shares as at 30 June
2020 (i.e. 7,103,285,390 Shares).

Ms. Law was beneficially interested in 32,463,918
underlying Shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, the
spouse of Ms. Law, was deemed to be interested in all
the underlying Shares in which Ms. Law was interested.

These underlying Shares represent 717,951,361 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the convertible bonds
issued to Mr. Sin on 29 June 2020 under which Mr. Sin
may exercise the conversion right from 29 June 2023
to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per
Share.

W ER T -_TFENAZTANEHTR
9 #% (B17,108,285,390 A% 17) °

% 4+ B % B 5 32,463,918 B R B IR 15 < 1R
BEHRAE D] kL (BE+ 2 RIE)
AR R 2 1 A R 2 0 2 A B A4 o
A -

ZERBBROERTER =S _ZF XA
ZHABEEEEBITHIIRRES BRI
HEEEBA - TE-_=FA-_t+hBE=-Z
ZREANA T N\BAEITEE SRR, 0.55
ETLATE RN 515 T 8 1TR9 717,951,361
B AR A7
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These underlying Shares represent (i) 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow on 29 September
2010 pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on
22 July 2002 and terminated on 29 September 2010
(“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) under which Mr.
Chow may exercise the said options from 29 September
2010 to 2 September 2020 at an exercise price of
HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 58,807 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the
share option scheme adopted on 29 September 2010
(“New Share Option Scheme”) under which Mr. Chow
may exercise the said options from 28 March 2012 to
27 March 2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per
Share; and (i) 40,305,952 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the convertible bonds issued to Mr. Chow on
29 June 2020 under which Mr. Chow may exercise the
conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at
an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent 33,604 Shares to
be issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Chui on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui
may exercise the said options from 28 March 2012 to
27 March 2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per
Share.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T

ZEHBERMDIBEOIRREBER -_ZEZT_F A
ZHZHEH YR =TT FNALAZ=ZTI
AR EERETES (BR L EREABR
EE)) RZZT—ZFALA=TIBET
AEAENEMEEBRERITERE TR
224,888 (& 1D - HELL - AAEERR =T —
TEFARA-Z+TNBEZZE-_EFNLA_BH
MTTEE AT AR - 1T E R EAR2.89% T ;
MRABE=ZZ—ZFNA=ZTHLBERANE
REE ((FBRESE) R =_F——F
ZAZHN\BETRALENEDFEERE
TEITIE & 1E T 817 258,807 B AR 1D+ Ut -
BAEEAR-_E——F=A-+N\BE=-Z
Z—F = A=+t H M E AR AR RE
TEEAEBR7.62ET  Ri)RITER=ZZ
ZEFRAZTNAAMBELEEBETHIRAR
&Rt BEEa-—S-=%F~A-t+h
BE-_ZE_AF XA+ N\BRARTEESE
MR A& 17 0.55 B TATE M ARME) B4 T R1TH
40,305,952 BB 17 °

ZEHBARMNDERBENBREFER =S
—— A+ N\BETELENENEE
EREEITEEN T 317,233,604 R AR M -
B BEEAATRN -_ZE——F=A=-+\H
B F=ZA- Tt HHMEITERE
Bt - TEEARERT7.62ETT -



3.  Long position in the debentures of the Company

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
M &R

3. RELARKTHFE

Denomination or

Capacity/Nature of Currency of unit size of the Amount of
Name of Director Interest debentures debentures debentures
B ERE
EENSR B ERiE BRI BuRE Ei%ﬁ%g
HK
BT
Mr. Sin BenefLoiaI owner HKD 500,000 394,873,249
IR E BEXEAA AT (Note 1)
K1zt 1)
Interest of spouse HKD 500,000 17,855,155
(Note2) BT (Note 3)
BB (et 2) (K1313)
Mr. Chow BenechiaI owner HKD 500,000 22,168,274
BEE EmEEA BT (Note 4)
(Hat4)
Notes: o=
1. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to Mr. 1. ZEBEBEAR_ZE_ZEFA=-TNLBR%

Sin on 29 June 2020 under which Mr. Sin may exercise
the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

2. Ms. Law was beneficially interested in 17,855,155
debentures of the Company. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Sin, the spouse of Ms. Law, was deemed to be
interested in all the debentures in which Ms. Law was
interested.

3. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to
Ms. Law on 29 June 2020 under which Ms. Law may
exercise the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28
June 2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

4. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to Mr.
Chow on 29 June 2020 under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28
June 2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive of the Company or their associates had, as at 30
June 2020, any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

FEBITHIBRRES (Bt AkEBE =
T_=FRNAZt+ABE-ZT-_RF~A
ZHNBARITEEGRR7D 055 ITITHE
R E) o

2. BT ERHA17,855155 N A EIET - 1R
BESHLBEERD  frE (BLt2iB)
WRAERBRZITHBREMNEMELTHEE
M e

3. ZEBHAN T _ZEFAZTNARAR
TEBETHARKRES (B Xt E=
E-_=FANAZ-ZtThAhBE-_ZT-_AF A
ZHNBAIRITEE SR 0.55 8 TiT®
H]ARHRE) o

4, ZEBBEANR_ZE_ZEFA=-+NLBRAE
EEFTHIBRRES (Bt BXEE =
T _=FRNAZTHhAhBE_Z-_AF<A
ZHN\BARITEEGRRG 0558 TITE
HBRHE) o

B EXFIREIN RN BB ENA=TH REE
ARABEBITHRAEREES B 2B BEABMBENRAK
AR ETMAEEIE (TR RAEFRBEKIE
XVER) Z E A B fn - FERE R (D &ﬁ%«’qﬂ%ﬁf{ﬁffﬁ
%m%&%lﬁa1l*1§IJ%XV*B%7&%8“*BZ%E EA
PSRN BT 2 MR TR R (B Ll A+
mﬁsxﬁM%&ﬁﬂiwﬂﬂﬂmw&”‘{’Emﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
BmEOAR) - HREBEESRIEEGIE35215R T
BRI B RMAZERSIAE ME%FGEM
THRBESABIEEFES6TIEZIETAME AN
MR AT SRR ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2020, the persons or corporations, other than a
director or chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or had otherwise
been notified to the Company were as follows:

A.  Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

1. Substantial shareholders’ long position in the Shares

2 RO B At N\ 7 I A B
I5H 1B By 2 HE i B % T

RIZZBEZZFRA=1TH BEAQRRAEREFK
HIE 6B 58 XV 5B 58 336 G EF B < B LM Aacek -
KARRCDENE  THALIEE (BRARRE
FRITHAESN) RARE 2By RAB R & %

BRERIOAR :
A FERFESR
1. TERFERRHEIHE
Approximate

percentage of
the issued share

Capacity/ Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Company
LER VNG
EEITRAZ
RS B MR BERGEE BABED
(Note 1)
K1zt 1)
Ms. Law Beneficial owner 54,163,311 0.76%
Eat EmEEA
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,5629,983,985 21.54%
Bl wE s (57 2)
Notes: K1t -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 30 1. WHERZT_EFAA=ZTANEHBEE

June 2020 (i.e. 7,103,285,390 Shares).

2. Mr. Sin was beneficially interested in
1,629,983,985 Shares. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Law, the spouse of Mr. Sin, was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Sin was
interested.
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32,463,918 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the convertible bonds issued
to Ms. Law on 29 June 2020 under which
Ms. Law may exercise the conversion right
from 29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an
exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

Substantial shareholders’ long position in the 2 FERERIEERGZHE
underlying Shares
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Capacity/ Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Company
LR NN
BRITREZ
R E B REEME BERGEE BABEDL
(Note 1)
(Mtat1)
Ms. Law Beneficial owner 32,463,918 (Note 3) 0.46%
EH L EmEAA (K77#3)
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 717,951,361 10.11%
BB (Hit2)
Notes: Biat -
This is based on the total issued Shares 1. WHERZZE_ZTFA=ZTENZHEE
as at 30 June 2020 (i.e. 7,103,285,390 175 (B17,103,285,390 B& A& 17) °
Shares).
Mr. Sin was beneficially interested in 2. S EE R A 717,951,361 IR AR (D © 1R
717,951,361 underlying Shares. By virtue BESLBAEKRD Bt OExEZREB)
of the SFO, Ms. Law, the spouse of Mr. WRABRELERBEAN T HMROTHEE
Sin, was deemed to be interested in all the s o
underlying Shares in which Mr. Sin was
interested.
These underlying Shares represent 3. ZERBERODERTER-_Z_ZTF XA

ZHNBEETEEITH AR ES (Rt -

HAEEBZTE_=ZF AT ALAE=Z
ZHREANAZFN\BARITEEFRRG 0.55
EITITE RN ) 1518 T 35178 32,463,918 i%

Bt -
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B.  Other Persons’ Interests B. HthAtzER
1. Other persons long position in the Shares 1. AMALTRRGZHE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Company
LER NG
BRITRAZ
RER M E B NS BERGEE BMABEDL
(Note 1)
(Mtat1)
Mr. Tse Beneficial Owner 565,539,793 7.96%
Eiibas EnlEB A
Note: Wiat -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 30 1. WHERAZZE_TFA=Z+HNE
June 2020 (i.e. 7,103,285,390 Shares). 2P B 1T M (BN7,103,285,390 A% ik
7)o
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2. Otherpersons’ long position in the underlying Shares
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2. RMALTREERG 24

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held Company
LER NG
EBRITRAZ
R E B3 HEEME BERGEE BABEDL
(Note 1)
(Mtat1)
Mr. Tse Beneficial owner 2,099,047 0.03%
Eilpas EmBERA (Note 2)
(Mizt2)
Notes: Wiat -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 30 1. WHERZZE-_ZTFA=+HNE

June 2020 (i.e. 7,103,285,390 Shares).

2. These underlying Shares represent 2,099,047
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
convertible bonds issued to Mr. Tse on 29 June
2020 under which Mr. Tse may exercise the
conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other
than a director or chief executive of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.

BB B 1T % 15 (B 7,103,285,390 % A%
) °

2. ZERBROERITER=ZZ=2ZF
NAZ TN B R# T EBEITR A R
BEH (B $EEE T -=F<A
—t+thBE-Z-_REXA-+NH
AT EE SRR D 055 LTk
% HE) 1% 45 F 23517 89 2,099,047 & A% (7

Br EXATaESN  RZFBZTFRA=1H
ARRABLEAABEAAL (RAREEREE
TR BERIN) AR 2 BB A7 S AR RBE AR £ 7 4
BIRIERE 75 MBS R 1) 55 XV BE 5 336 {5 AT AR
ERFEERMALEER AR R RKEE

SL A
mIORE °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder
dated 22 July 2002, the Company conditionally adopted
and approved Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. The principal
terms of which are set out in Appendix IV to the prospectus of
the Company dated 9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company dated 29 September 2010, the
New Share Option Scheme was adopted and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme was terminated. The principal terms of
New Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 6 September 2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 30 June 2020, the share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 24,888 Shares granted pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The details of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the six months ended
30 June 2020 are set out as follows:

Wi Fie B - 2

RIBE RN -_ZZ_FLA-+ - HZEER
FBE AR BE G R RALE B IR QFHEBE
BREE  FRANI2EFERNARA-_TZT
F+ANAZARBBERERMEOA -

REARBR_F-FFAA-THLARTZIER
FRIRE EEBORFER  FIBBER S ERS -
HEPNGEE 3t R IR ey
B2 IZBRARERNARBAR T -—FTFAANAH
HZ A e

BERLRARKRERETE

MNZBE-ZTEXA=Z1+A REERXAHBREE
FEAEET 8133 1 im A BB A 24,888 A% 1D 2 BE M
MARETE RBE-_ZT-_FTFXA=1+HIAHE
Az B8R ARBREBRETSFBEOT

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Asat Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
Category of price per 1 January during during during during asat
participants Share Date of grant Exercise period 2020 theperiod theperiod  theperiod  the period 30 June 2020
H-B-%f
R #-%-%% ~BZ1H
SEAEN fikE  B4AH s -B-B HRRE  BAfE BAxM BRER  HAGR
HKS
A
Directors 366 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 33,292 - - (3329 - -
gz “T-2ERATEA ZT-ZFRATZR-
ECRERATCA
Directors 289 3 September 2010 29 September 2010-2 September 2020 24888 - - - - 24,388
gz Z3-ZEnACA Z5-FENAZTAR-
CECRENACA
Total 58,180 - - (3329 - 24888
et |

Note:  All share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme are vested immediately.
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New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company has been refreshed to up to 449,848,122 Shares,
being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM date based
on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue as at the AGM date
(excluding share options previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”); and the Directors
are authorised, at their absolute discretion, to grant share
options to subscribe for Shares within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit in accordance with the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the Shares pursuant to
the exercise of share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to
do such acts and execute such documents for or incidental
to implement the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit.
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As at 30 June 2020, the share options to subscribe for an RZE-ZFXAZ+TH BREFNEREFZRY
aggregate of 92,411 Shares granted pursuant to the New A RIE S 92,411 IR AR 19 2 B IR i R EFTIE - B
Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The details of the HE_Z-FFA=THIERER  BREBEFER
share options granted under the New Share Option Scheme R EIR hERERIBTINT
during the six months ended 30 June 2020 are set out as
follows:
Number of share options
BhREnA
Outstanding
Exercise Asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
Category of price per 1 January during during during during 30 June
participants Share  Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period 2020 the period the period the period the period 2020
R
i bt 43
s8R It b ~E=TA
S8 058 fikE HLRH BED ik -5-H B Bheif BhxN% LIRS AT
HKS
B
Directors (Notg) 762 28March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- Q411 - - - - R4
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
207 F-F ZE--EZANBE ZF-CEZACNAE
ZA-thA ZE-CEEACHHA ZEC-EZRCt4R
Directors (Notg) 0.2456 16 May 2017 Vested immediately 16 May 2017-15 May 2020 46,460,000 - - (46460,000) - -
Ez(liz) ZErE IS “E-tFRATARE
A1 ZTZEERATRA
Other participants 02456 16May 2017 Vested immedlately 16 May 2017-15 May 2020 207,920,000 - - (207,920,000) - -
Efp2EAL Z5-tF S “E-+FRATARE
R ZTCEERATRA
Tota 24472411 - - (54380000 - P4
Note:  The Directors include former directors of the Company. Wit BEBEREARRNMETES -
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(i)

(iii)

New Share Option Scheme’s purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to selected person and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include any employee of the Company or any subsidiary
of the Company, a director, a shareholder, a supplier,
a customer or any subsidiary of the Company; an
agent, adviser, consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-
contractor, expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of its subsidiary;
and a holder of any securities issued.

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the AGM
on 29 June 2017, the scheme limit on the grant of
options under the New Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company was
refreshed to up to the Refreshed Scheme Limit, i.e.
449,848,122 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of the AGM (i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares
in issue) (excluding share options previously granted,
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the New Share Option Scheme) and representing
approximately 6.12% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this report (i.e. 7,353,285,390 Shares); and the
Directors are authorized, at their absolute discretion, to
grant share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules
of the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and
deal with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of share
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
within the Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such
acts and execute such documents for or incidental to
implement the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit.

(i

(i)

(iii)
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(iv)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any options
which, if exercised in full, would result in such person’s
maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the aggregate
number of Shares for the time being issued and
issuable under the New Share Option Scheme in the
12-month period up to and including the proposed
grant date unless such grant is approved in advance
by the Shareholders in general meeting. No qualifying
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non- executive Director, or any of their
respective associates shall be granted any options,
which, if exercised in full, would result in the shares
issued and issuable to such person under the New
Share Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to
and including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in advance by
the Shareholders of the Company in general meeting: (a)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the number of
Shares then in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on each
relevant date on which the grant of such options is
made to such person under the relevant scheme, in
excess of HK$5 million.

Option period

The share options may be exercised in whole or in part
by the participant at any time during the exercise period,
i.e. not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant new share options pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme, by delivering to the Company a notice
duly signed in a form approved by the Board (together
with payment of the exercise price in full in respect
of each new share to be subscribed for) and delivery
of the new share option certificate for amendment or
cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable of or
open for acceptance shall be made after the expiry of
the exercise period pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bi& R %Xt EEAERA T
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer. The share option
offer will be offered for acceptance for a period of 14
days from the date on which the offer is granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for the share under the New
Scheme will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of making the offer of grant of
a new share option but in any case the subscription
price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business day immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on the date on which
the New Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional.
The Board may amend any of the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme or withdraw or otherwise
terminate the New Share Option Scheme at any time
but no alterations shall be made to the advantage of
any participant unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting. All new share options granted prior to
such termination and not then exercise shall continue to
be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance
with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme.

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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EMPLOYEE AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had a total of 419 (2019: 477)
staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The remuneration
paid or payable to the staff during the six months ended
30 June 2020 was approximately HK$20,192,000 (2019:
HK$25,463,000).

The Directors believe that the quality of its employees is the
most important factor in sustaining the Group’s growth and
improving its profitability. The Group gives remuneration
and discretionary bonus to its employees based on their
performances, experience and prevailing industry practices.
In addition to basic salaries and mandatory provident fund,
staff benefits including medical coverage scheme and share
options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed periodically
by the remuneration committee of the Board and the Board’s
remuneration is determined by reference to market terms,
company performance, and individual qualifications and
performance. The Group aimed to recruit, retain and develop
competent individuals who were committed to the Group’s
long-term success and growth. Remunerations and other
benefits of employees were reviewed annually in response
to both market conditions and trends, and were based on
qualifications, experience, responsibilities and performance.

The current remuneration of the Directors and the key
management is determined by the individual performance and
market trends.

During the period under review, the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruption to its operation due to labour disputes nor has it
experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff. The Directors believe that the Group has a
good working relationship with its employees.

The Group encourages and supports the employees in
personal and professional training and also encourages a
culture of experience-sharing. The Group organises various
forms of training covering management, customers service,
financial, etc to the PRC office with support from the Hong
Kong head office. Other than the internal training programme,
the Group has also established a continuous education
scheme (the “Education Scheme”). According to the
Education Scheme, the employee who passed the probation
will be entitled to the subsidy for the specified course
approved by the management with the maximum amount to
HK$50,000.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the six months ended 30 June 2020.

REQUIRED STANDARD OF
DEALINGS FOR DIRECTORS
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors
adopted by the Company throughout the six months ended
30 June 2020.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION
OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred was appointed as the company
secretary of Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8089), on 1 July 2020.

Save as disclosed above, since the date of the annual report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019, up to
the date of this report, there are no changes in the information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) in 2002 with written terms of reference, which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s annual
reports and financial statements, interim reports and quarterly
reports and discuss with the management over issues relating
to auditing, internal control and financial reporting.

During the six months ended 30 June 2020 and as at the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi
Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Li Kit Chee and Mr. Lam Kwok
Hing Wilfred. The Group’s unaudited results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and this report have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results and this report have complied with
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

By order of the Board
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(Provisional Liquidators Appointed)
(For Restructuring Purposes)
Chow Kai Weng
Associate Chairman, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 August 2020
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Executive Director
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam

Associate Chairman, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer
Mr. Chow Kai Weng

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
Mr. Ho Leung Ting

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Lam Lee G.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Yick Him

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chow Kai Weng

HEAD OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 1514-15

15/F, Seapower Tower

Concordia Plaza No.1 Science Museum Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

Nomination Committee

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda laws)
LCH Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong laws)

AUDITORS

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE

8228
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National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited

BZREXVKREBBERAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

(MEAESHEFMBIAREREFEZARAT)
Stock code B 131X 5% : 8228
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